Public Document Pack

Wirral Children’s Trust

Children’s Trust Board
Agenda

Tuesday, 24 January 2012 commencing at 9.00 am
Professional Excellence Centre, Acre Lane, Bromborough
1.

09:00 APOLOGIES AND INTRODUCTIONS

2.

09:00 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

3.

09:05 MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING (Pages 1 - 6)

4.

09:10 POSITIVE CONTRIBUTION STRATEGY GROUP ANNUAL
UPDATE (Pages 7 - 12)

5.

09:40 COMMUNITY BUDGETS UPDATE (Pages 13 - 16)

6.

09:50 COMMISSIONING UPDATE (Pages 17 - 32)

7.

10:05 CHILD POVERTY (Pages 33 - 56)

10:25 BREAK
8.

10:45 SAFEGUARDING BOARD - QUARTERLY UPDATE (Pages 57
- 58)

9.

11:05 CONNEXIONS (Pages 59 - 64)

10.

11:25 ANY OTHER BUSINESS

Date and time of next meeting: 20th March 2012 9:00 - 12:00, PEC, Acre
Lane

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 3

WIRRAL CHILDREN'S TRUST BOARD

Minutes of the Meeting held on Tuesday, 22 November 2011

64

Present:

David Armstrong, Councillor Ann McLachlan (Chair), Bev Morgan,
Emma Dodd, Fiona Johnstone, Councillor Pat Williams, Andrew Davies,
Chief Superintendent John Martin, Kathryn Podmore, Gillian Thomas, Lyn
Loughran, Sue Brown, Lisa Cooper, Debbie Mayor, Pat Higgins

In Attendance:

Nancy Clarkson, Tracy Little, Julia Hassall, Mark Parkinson, Maureen
McDaid, Matthew Humble; Ann Clarkson, Lesley Griffiths, David Robbins.

09:00 APOLOGIES AND INTRODUCTIONS
Councillor Sheila Clarke, Richard Longster (Wirral Schools Forum), Derek Kitchin (WASH),
Andy Styring (CAMHS), Adrian Hughes (Paediatrician), Jane Owens (Wirral Governors).
Cllr McLachlan welcomed Lisa Cooper to her first meeting as the representative of Wirral
Community Trust (NHS).

65

09:00 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
Bev Morgan and Emma Dodd declared an interest in minute items 71 and 72, as they represent
commissioned services.

66

09:05 MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING
Minutes agreed as a true record.

67

09:10 CHILDREN'S SERVICES ASSESSMENT 2011
The recent OFSTED Children’s Services Assessment has improved from a GOOD (Grade 3) to
EXCELLENT (Grade 4). Wirral is one of 28 areas that have achieved excellent and is a
testament to the combined hard work of all the organisations working with children across the
Children’s Trust.
David Armstrong requested that Board Members share the information with everyone in their
organisations and pass on his thanks for all the dedication that has gone in to making the
services for children in Wirral amongst the best in England.
The OFSTED assessment is very comprehensive; the report outlines the range of services and
settings inspected. The challenge is to continue this high standard in the current financial
climate. The Board were all pleased with the result. The Chair added her thanks and
congratulations to all the organisations involved, the assessment was a result of all the multiagency work that takes place across the Borough.

68

09:15 ENJOY AND ACHIEVE ANNUAL UPDATE
Mark Parkinson presented his annual report from the Enjoy and Achieve Outcome Group. Mark
noted there was good progress at each key stage (KS), with room for further improvement
particularly at KS1 and KS5.
Mark added that although the Narrowing the Gap (NTG) measure for KS4 is above 30%, the
overall performance at KS4 is top quartile nationally, ranking Wirral the 18th LA in England.

1 of 6 1
Page

Mark noted at KS4 the “100 club” worked with 100 FSM children who were at risk of not
achieving KS4 5 A*-C (including English and maths). Additional funding and support was
targeted to these children. The gap narrowed by a further 1% above what was expected. The
“100 club” project will be revised and repeated.
Mark added that the challenge to raise attainment for children with FSM is a complex issue
requiring a partnership approach. He added that the KS4 5 A*-C (English and maths) is a key
milestone for children to progress to better outcomes further on in life.
Speech and language therapists are working in schools as an advice and consultancy service.
This service effectively triages concerns about speech plus language issues and is showing
some good results.
The MEAS and music service have been revised.
David Armstrong added that the NTG area was highlighted at post 16 in the OFSTED letter.
Kathryn Podmore asked if a similar project to ‘the 100 club’ was being used for KS5. Mark
noted that work with KS5 is in place. The “100 club” type project is being considered at KS5
however, there is much less resource to implement this.
Mark noted that the SEN Green paper will be a priority area over the coming months.
Key challenges ahead include:-

Implementation of Education Bill
Ensure Education Quality continues to meet school requirements.
Impact of budgets challenges.
Narrowing the Gap.
Consider the impact and the implementation of the Munro Review.

Key risks include:-

Implications of reduction in staff.
Implications of Academies.
ICT infrastructure and support

David Armstrong noted the number of primary children at risk of permanent exclusion from
school has increased. Mark noted that a managed moves policy was in place in secondary
schools where schools undertake preventative work to support children before escalation to a
move or exclusion. This process is under development in the Primary sector. Julia Hassall
added that these children are often referred by primary schools for behavioural issues to CAF
and TAC meetings.
Mark noted that four case studies are available for colleagues to read these include Step into
Leisure, Discovery CLC, Education Quality and an SEN case study.
Councillor McLachlan thanked Mark and his team for all their work in this area. Councillor
McLachlan asked that a referral pathway for behavioural issues is developed between CTB
partners and that “behaviour” is brought back to a future meeting. Debbie Mayor offered to
ensure health representation in this area.
Resolved - The Board note the report.

2 of 6

Page 2

69

09:55 CHILDREN'S FIRST STRATEGIC BOARD BI ANNUAL REPORT
The Children’s First Strategic Board is a multi-agency board with a focus on activity relating to
children under five and their families. Mark Parkinson reports to the Board bi-annually on
progress in this area.
The success of the childcare places for two year olds funding initiative is being built upon to
increase the number of children accessing the free offer to 20%.
Work is planned to evaluate the sufficiency of child care across the Borough.
Wirral Children’s Centres are involved in a pilot Department for Education payment by results
(PbR) research project. Pat Higgins noted that it may be helpful to learn the lessons from PbR
work in the NHS. Mark agreed and noted he was working closely with Rose Curtis.
The e-start database is now well established in children’s centres providing a wealth of data and
analysis to improve targeted activity.
Andrew Davies asked if there has been any work being conducted to look at the effect of
transition between settings from F1 to F2 and the effects on FSP results. Mark responded he
would take this back to Catherine Kerr, nothing had been done nationally that he was aware of.
Resolved – The Board note the report.

70

10:15 CHILD POVERTY
Bev Morgan updated that the Roots and Wings Draft Child Poverty Strategy has been approved
by Cabinet. Further work will take place regarding developing the strategy and action plan. The
focus on reducing child poverty should be embedded into the planning and work of all
organisations in Wirral.
Bev added that awareness of the Child Poverty work has been raised by recent media coverage
and that the Wirral Strategy will be officially launched in April. The Liverpool City Region Child
Poverty Strategy has been launched and Bev will provide a web link to be circulated.
Twelve delegates have visited the Borough from America to look at how Child Poverty is
managed in the region.
Nancy Clarkson added that staff, across the Council, are working on developing the strategy
and that a Performance Management Framework was under development to ensure that
delivering the strategy and associated action plan resulted in measurable improved outcomes
for children, young people and their families.
Councillor Williams noted the importance of raising the aspirations for children and also to
ensure that health issues are addressed, teaching children to eat well and look after themselves
in the first instance.
Julia Hassall added that there is clear links between the Child Poverty and the Teenage
Pregnancy Strategy. Bev added a pilot is underway to work with a handful of teenage mums to
raise their aspirations and that of their children.
Resolved - The Board noted the report.

3 of 6

Page 3

71

10:45 COMMISSIONING UPDATE
Maureen McDaid updated on the quarterly monitoring of the Early Intervention Grant. Maureen
outlined the four priority areas.
Priority Area One: Parenting/Compromised Parenting
In some Parenting Programmes performance has been rates as red, due to new service
providers preparing to become fully operational. There has been a delay in the 16-18 domestic
violence programmes due to recruitment of staff. Actions have now been agreed and are being
tightly monitored. Other contracts are working well.
Julia noted the success of the cross-agency needs led identification of young people involved in
domestic violence and the good joint working from partners to identify and achieve this.
Priority Area Two - Short Breaks for Disabled Children
Two services have been rates as red, these are due to set up times and also issues of
recruitment. These issues are being address and are being closely monitored. Six services
have been rated as green.
Priority Area Three - Working with Young People at Risk of Exclusion from Schools
Within targeted support two service areas were rated as red.
activities will be reclaimed.

The funding paid for these

Priority Area Four - Universal Services
With regard to universal services, one area rated as Red and 10 services rated as green.
Maureen added that there has been a particular success at one youth club in Birkenhead,
where 80-100 young people are attending the “Saturday night”. Lyn Loughran, who volunteers
at the club, noted that a number of the young people are vulnerable and the centre provides
them a safe place to meet.
A drama workshop about substance misuse will be rolled out to schools. Maureen also added
that four “Big Nights” will take place over the coming months which will be very exciting and
provide positive events for young people.
David Armstrong noted that the Wirral Youth Theatre have moved into the old Gilbrook site. It
has been renamed The Pilgrim Street Arts Centre.
Resolved - The Board note the report.

72

11:10 COMMUNITY BUDGETS
Maureen outlined the background to Community Budgets. Their purpose is to provide multiagency support to families with complex or multiple needs and to address those needs to make
a positive difference to the families involved.
There is no additional funding available, other than £20,000 for support to develop a project
plan and the possibility of up to £50,000 for technical support in preparing a Community Budget
implementation plan from April 2012.

4 of 6

Page 4

By January it is expected that he programme would have the following in place:
•
•
•

Timescales and decisions agreed
Noticeable increase in understanding and commitment
Commitment from managers to deadlines

Julia Hassall added that Wirral are already working in partnership well and have a solid
foundation. Julia noted that the development of the criteria to determine “troubled families”
within the Borough was required. Initial thoughts are that Seacombe would be a neighbourhood
that would benefit from such a scheme.
Fiona Johnstone noted that this would align to the work of the Wellbeing Project which is using
a locality approach. Sue Brown noted the impacts on children when one or more parent is in
custody and of the importance of identifying families that may be known to the justice system.
Resolved – The Board note the report.

73

11:25 MULTI-AGENCY WORKING THROUGH AREA TEAMS
Matthew Humble presented an update into the physical co-location of teams across the
Borough. Teams are located within buildings that children and families use including children’s
centres and schools.
Ann Clarkson outlined the purpose and functions of area teams. The teams offer advice and
guidance on TAC meetings and monitor the frequency and quality of TAC meetings.
The core team is made up of, social worker, information sharing co-ordinator, education social
worker, a family support worker. In addition there may be youth workers, CAMHS workers,
health visitors and school nurses.
David Robbins outlined that 50% of CAF activity takes place over Birkenhead and Rock Ferry.
CAF activity can be reported to a small geographical area and ECM outcome area. Most
common reasons for CAF include behaviour, parenting and health issues. Around 4,000
consultations have taken place over the last 12 months.
Lesley Griffiths gave an example of a child aged 8. The case came to light at CADT and has
been sign posted and referred to different professionals. A further child aged 14 has had
behavioural issues and is at risk of exclusion. She has had a number of interventions put in
place and is progressing well.
Lesley added that the physical co-location of the Area Teams and the Assessment Teams has
built good positive relationships and information sharing. The benefits for children and young
people are wide-ranging including more timely interventions, efficient joined up approaches and
improved outcomes for children and their families.
Bev Morgan noted the positive impact she has seen in families with regard to the co-location of
the area teams.
Cllr McLachlan thanked colleagues for their report.
Resolved – The Board note the report.

5 of 6

Page 5

74

11:45 QUARTER 2 CYPP PERFORMANCE REPORT
Tracy Little presented the Children and Young People’s Plan Quarter Two performance report.
Tracy noted that at quarter two twenty nine indicators could be reported of which 61% are either
hitting or exceeding targets.
Performance headlines for children’s services include:
•

OFSTED Children’s Services Assessment – PERFORMS EXCELLENTLY

•

Wirral primary schools continue to perform well, 77% of all pupils gained a Level 4 or above
in both English and Maths, compared to 74% nationally and 76% for the North West.

•

This year’s provisional GCSE results show that Wirral students have once again achieved
the best ever results. 58% of Wirral students in maintained schools achieved the national
benchmark of 5+ A*-C including English and mathematics, which is up from last year’s result
of 54%. 80% achieved 5 or more A*-C GCSE results, which again was up on last year’s
figure of 73%.

•

The percentage of looked after children reaching level 4 at Key Stage 2 were 65.7% in
English and 62.9% in Maths, exceeding the targets set and improving on last year’s
performance of 52% and 56%.

The performance of indicators rated amber and red was also outlined, actions are on place to
address areas of under performance or indicators at risk of not meeting the annual targets.
Cllr. McLachlan gave her thanks for the report.
Resolved – The Board note the report.
Any Other Business
David Armstrong thanked everyone for their contribution to the Children’s Trust over the last
twelve months and Cllr. McLachlan echoed this and wished everyone a Happy Christmas.
David Armstrong updated that a new Director of Adult Social Services has been appointed;
Graham Hodkinson, he will start in the New Year.
Next Meeting: 24th January 2012, 9:00 – 12:00 PEC, Acre Lane

6 of 6

Page 6

Agenda Item 4
WIRRAL CHILDREN’S TRUST BOARD – 24TH JANUARY 2012
POSITIVE CONTRIBUTION STRATEGY GROUP ANNUAL REPORT TO THE BOARD

1.0 Introduction
The Positive Contribution Strategy Group has representation from Health, Wirral DAAT, The
Voluntary Community and Faith Sector, Integrated Youth Support (Targeted and Universal)
Community Safety, Children and Young People’s Department (Children’s Social Care), Enjoy and
Achieve, Merseyside Fire & rescue and Involve North West. Meetings are held bi-monthly and the
focus of these meetings is to monitor progress by group members in implementing the Positive
Contribution section of the Children’s Plan. The meetings also provide an opportunity the strategy
group to identify emerging issues and discuss any impact on the work linked to the strategy group.
An example of this was the increase of First Time Entrants to the Youth Justice System. Analysis
of this increase identified that 26% of the increase was due to fare evasion by young people.
Following this analysis, the Youth Offending service worked with the Transport police to secure
agreement that young people involved in fare evasion should be triaged to identify a more
appropriate intervention.
The work of the Outcome area is broad and ranges from formal interventions as undertaken by the
Youth Offending Service to informal interventions such as helping young people to be involved in
the decision making process at Pupil panels or at Youth Forum meetings. The work of the group
is balanced between ensuring that targeted interventions enable vulnerable and at risk young
people to move on to more universal developmental activities and maximise the opportunities
presented by positive activities such as those funded by the Early Intervention Grant.
2.0 Overview
Key recent
achievements

• Young people full members of the commissioning panel for Priority
Area Three (Early Intervention Grant).
• Young people have been reporting their successes on Teen Wirral and
challenging the negative perspective of young people.
• Young people set the priorities for the allocation of the Youth
opportunity Fund.
• The final 11 play areas were improved and completed as part of the
Play Builder programme and average attendances at new play areas
have increased.
• Approximately 2156 children have participated in a range of positive
play opportunities including Short Breaks for disabled children.
• The new integrated management structure for Integrated Youth
Support has resulted in the identification of new ways to promote
prevention and early intervention.
• The use of Triage by the Youth Offending Service is contributing to
young people not entering the Youth Justice System.
• More young people are being offered the opportunity to critically
assess their consumption of alcohol.

Key issues

• Maintaining the balance in the work of the strategy group between
targeted statutory interventions and universal open access positive
activities.
• Identifying the specific outcomes for children and young people.

Page 7

1

Key challenges
ahead

• Maintaining partnership working in a period of competing priorities.
• Maintaining the balance in the work of the strategy group between
targeted statutory interventions and universal open access positive
activities.
• Ensuring young people from both priority and non priority groups have
opportunities to be effective in the decision making process.
• Increased involvement by schools in the planning arrangements for the
Youth Parliament in 2012

Risks to outcome
delivery and
proposed actions

• Pressures on existing resources to meet competing priorities.
• Proposed to work with the strategy group to ensure priorities are
relevant and shared by partners and regularly review the work of the
group.
• Schools may not be able to be actively involved in the planning
process.
• Proposed action is to ensure that early deadlines are set and schools
continue to be informed of arrangements for the Youth Parliament.

Areas requiring
further partnership
involvement

• Work with schools to increase participation in Youth parliament.
• Partners’ response to the budget challenge. Are there areas where we
can avoid duplication?

Equalities impact
assessment areas
for development
and progress made

• Progress has been made in involving young people from minority
groups in the decision making process. This has been made possible
due to the increase by young people from minority groups in the
commissioned activities. This is still an area for development and
formalised in next year’s plan.

Areas for promotion
/publicity /
communication /
engagement

• The work of Wirral Involvement School’s Council supported by Wired is
enabling more young people with Learning Disabilities and Difficulties
to take part in consultations and campaigns both nationally and locally.

3.0 Areas for Reporting Focus
This year the work has included a focus on the development of the new Integrated Youth Support
management structure which has been identified as the driver to ensure that young people receive
timely and appropriate support. The structure is now in place and as a consequence, the
deployment of staff has been reviewed to ensure there are no overlaps in provision. This is now
improving outcomes for young people as the Positive Contribution Strategy Groups builds in the
work of IYSS into its target setting.
The Early Intervention Grant provided young people with the opportunity to influence decision
making. Three young people were full members of the commissioning panel for Priority Area
Three, Risk taking Behaviour in Children and Young People. New providers were
commissioned and a menu of support ranging from targeted interventions to universal
developmental activities is now available for young people. Opportunities include targeted support
through the Beacon Programme which is run by Merseyside Fire and Rescue to the open access
arts programme whereby young people have been able to develop their interest and skill in dance,
music or singing.
As part of addressing risk taking behaviour in young people, an Alcohol Intervention programme
has been developed whereby 80 youth workers will be trained to provide young people with the
opportunity to critically assess the implications of their alcohol use. This approach is innovative as

Page 8

2

youth workers in universal settings will be able to help young people take positive action to address
negative behaviour. Previously this work was seen as specialist and only deliverable in clinical
settings.
4.0 Case studies
Included are two case studies and quotes from young people who have been involved in a dance
project. They reflect how services have been planned to address needs in young people and
enable them to make a positive contribution. The examples are from Youth sports Night and Wirral
youth theatre. They have been selected as they demonstrate how a planned approach will address
individual needs and also show the breadth of the positive contribution agenda.
4.1 Case Study ‘A’
A is a 14 year old high school student who has been living on the Woodchurch Council Estate for
many years. She has been attending Youth Sports Nights for a few months now and enjoys playing
Basketball and Table tennis. A started attending the Youth Sports Night with one of her sisters, as
she had no other real friends. A comes from a large family, with lots of siblings and who are on a
low economic income and therefore can’t afford the up to date clothes and trainers. Local peers
bullied and ridiculed A as she has some cleanliness and hygiene problems and with very low
confidence and self-esteem she was an easy target for them.
Youth Sports Nights are run for young people of the local area to enjoy and participate in sporting
activities. They are free of charge and encourage local young people 13+ to engage in sports and
activities with avenues for progression into sports clubs and associations. Youth Sports Activities
Nights provide a comprehensive and excellent range of activities and are run across the local
authority recreation centres and Community Centres throughout the borough.
A has recently become an integral and much needed part of Friday evening at the Woodchurch
High School sports Centre working as a Young Volunteer. For the first few weeks A’s attendance
at the sessions was sporadic and she would not speak to anyone but her sisters. A also had limited
interaction with her peers, both in and out of the session because she was also teased over her
lack of cleanliness and personal hygiene this in turn affected her efforts to make friends.
It was noticed that A always liked to help staff when setting up equipment and dealing with
functional problems, A was asked if she would like to become a young volunteer. A gladly
accepted and has since been doing administrative work such as the registers, she also helps set
up session and helps solve issues or problems that other young people may have within the
session by talking and reassuring them. A also has become someone for her peers to speak to;
they see her as someone who now has some power to make decisions, and has increased
confidence.
On speaking to other young people, it has come to light that she is slowly being accepted as a
trusted, helpful and approachable peer and is gradually gaining the trust and respect of other
young people on the Woodchurch Estate. A has said that people are asking her during the week in
school and in the street what sport we will be doing this week in the youth sports nights, and she
said she replies to them ‘We’ll tell ya on Friday when we have made our decision!” She has said
that “It’s funny when they ask me what we are going to do on Friday”. This has empowered A and
has given her the self-assurance to answer her peers confidently.
A was delighted when she was approached and asked to become a young volunteer and wants to
gain her sporting qualifications with Community Sports Development and become a qualified
Sports Coach. I believe being a Young Volunteer has done wonders for A’s confidence, selfesteem and more importantly her self belief!
S Aldridge – Woodchurch Coordinator.
Community Sports Development.

Page 9

3

4.2 Wirral Youth Theatre (WYT) case study
A young man has recently joined the drama and improvisation sessions at Pilgrim Street Arts
Centre. This is after being involved in a taster session at the Multicultural Centre. WYT has
delivered several EIG arts tasters at the centre and the young man who attended a drama taster
session expressed an interest in developing his skills and was signposted to the two sessions that
he might be interested in.
He now travels in from Eastham regularly to attend both sessions and has shown himself to have
skills in both improvisation and physical theatre which are both new experiences for him. He is
focused and committed to both these sessions and from being quite shy and withdrawn, he now
appears to be really comfortable working with both groups and is looking forward to performing in
the Claire House Halloween Walk and an improvisation performance as part of the YOUTH ARTS
EXPO week in November.

Young Men’s Quotes from evaluations of the ‘MACHISMO RELOADED’
‘I learnt that if you
need to get a dance
job you have to do
different dance
styles’

‘Makes me want to
meet more male
dancers’

‘I think it was great
because I could bring
out my inner self’

‘I think its good, as it
stops us misbehaving’
tion3.

‘I can do whatever I want
if I try’

‘I think it was great
because some people
don’t know how good
young people are’

‘I think this is important
because there are not
many dance opportunities
for boys only’

‘Being able to express
yourself through dance’

‘Its great for getting us off
the streets’

‘I think this is a big
opportunity because people
can earn lots of money from
dance’

‘It was great because there
were two men that were the
teachers’
‘It’s different to most dance
events because it brings
different abilities together
and we meet new people’

5.0 Brief SWOT Analysis of the Outcome Area
Strengths
1. Multi-agency approaches to enabling young
people to have better outcomes.
2. Different needs of young people are
represented in strategy group.
3. Engagement agenda is shared across
partners.

Weaknesses:
1. Not always able to have tangible
outcomes
2. Not all groups are represented in
strategy group.

Opportunities:
1. Establish shared priorities to maximise
opportunities for children and young people.
2. Focus on the rationale for targeted and
universal activities
3. Understanding of other partner’s constraints.

Threats:
1. Budget pressures across the partnership
will reduce resource available.
2. Capacity of partners involved to deliver
against the expectations of partners.
3. Positive Contribution is not a statutory
duty and can be vulnerable to change in
priorities.

Page 10

4

6.0 Summary
This year the focus on structural changes as in Integrated Youth Support will form the basis of evidenced
and improved outcomes for young people. There is a shared understanding of the need to balance the
targeted and universal opportunities and the contribution both make to helping young people make a positive
contribution. Young people are becoming more involved in decision making as in the commissioning panel
for the Early Intervention grant. There is still scope for improvement in the Youth Parliament and the
opportunity it presents for young people to effectively engage in the decision making process. With such a
broad agenda the challenge for next year is to ensure that set targets are relevant to all partners and
identified work areas are achievable and impact is demonstrated.
7.0 Recommendations:
That Wirral Children’s Trust note the Report

Report Author:
Name Maureen Mc Daid
Title
Principal Manager

Contact:
Phone 666-4508
Email maureenmcdaid@wirral.gov.uk

Appendices: None

Page 11

5

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 12

Agenda Item 5
WIRRAL CHILDREN’S TRUST BOARD – 24 January 2012
Community Budgets Update

1.0

Background

This report provides background information on the Government’s Community Budgets
initiative and also describes progress to date with the implementation of Community
Budgets on Wirral. The Children’s Trust is asked to note the report.
2.0

Introduction

2.1

Community Budgets were introduced by the government as an initiative to deal with
the challenges presented by families with complex needs. Building on the Total
Place model, Community Budgets involves a number of agencies working together
to identify needs and appropriate interventions. Central to this approach is the
need for families to have one worker who will work with the agencies involved with
the family and ensure that the interventions are appropriate and the family is
involved in the planning process.

2.2

The first phase of Community Budgets was introduced in a number of authorities in
the spring of 2011. In August 2011, local authorities were invited to register their
interest in being involved in phase two. Wirral registered an interest at that time.

2.3

In response to the questions raised following the riots in the summer of 2011, the
Government indicated that there were too many families with complex needs not
engaged with the system with children at risk of, or actually involved in, anti social
behaviour. The Government has set a target to move 120,000 families out from
high levels of need to a point where parents are work ready, the children are in
education employment or training and there is a reduction in anti social behaviour.
To drive this policy the Troubled Families Unit was set up in the Department of
Communities and Local Government (DCLG) and Louise Casey was appointed to
head up the Unit.

3.0

Current Position

3.1

Wirral’s involvement in phase two of Community Budgets requires a Community
Budgets Business Plan to be published on the Wirral Council website by April 2012.
The intention is to target the work at 50 families who meet the criteria in one locality
and to develop the necessary changes in approach by agencies to deliver the
improvements in families. This work will require the involvement of key partners
including the Police, Job Centre Plus, Health, the Voluntary and Community Sector
and Social Landlords. The involvement of the partners and a partnership approach
is essential as evidence from the phase one authorities indicates the following
issues will have to be addressed:
• Health
• Anti social behaviour
• School attendance
• Unemployment
• Potential eviction

Page 13

3.2

Nationally the programme and government expectations are still being developed.
On 22 December 2011, Joe Tuke, Director Troubled Families Team wrote to local
authority Chief Executives to set out the current position in respect of the national
programme. In addition to the work reported in point 3.0, there is a wish by
government that local authorities will upscale their plans in respect of the numbers
of families they will involve in the programme. Wirral has been identified by
government as having 900 families with complex needs. Additional funding of
£20,000 will be made available to resource the identification of the families across
Wirral who would be judged as having complex needs. The government criteria for
families to be included in this work are outlined in point 3.2.

3.3

Using national information and local operational knowledge the following is
proposed as the criteria by which the families will be identified for support from the
Community Budgets programme. Families being referred would be meeting a
number of the criteria listed below.
•

Poverty

•

Poor Social Housing

•

Long term unemployed

•

Permanent exclusion from education

•

Physical and mental health problems

•

Involvement in crime and anti social behaviour

•

Addiction to alcohol and or drugs

•

Domestic violence

•

Children on the edge of care

•

Families with children in care

•

Children placed at home with parents

•

The degree of existing involvement

3.4

The letter from Joe Tuke also indicated that an additional £100,000 would be made
available each year from April 2012 until 2015. The level of funding available is
linked to the estimated number of families with complex needs on Wirral. The
funding is expected to cover the recruitment of a coordinator to head up the work
with identified families and also to lever in the support of partners. It is expected
that the coordinators will be employed by the local authority however they could be
are employed by one of the partner organisations. In addition the funding can be
used to cover data analysts, and other support requirements to ensure delivery of
the programme. The expectation is that the 900 families will have moved out of
complex needs by March 2015. Although the agreed numbers of families will have
to be involved the numbers on the programme at any one time is a local decision.
Please see attached Appendix A for the government’s proposal for the role and
expectations of coordinators.

3.5

The letter of the 22nd December also indicated that local authorities could be
involved in a Payment by Results approach whereby 40% of the total cost of the up
scaled approach could be reimbursed if the agreed results were achieved. This is

Page 14

work in progress centrally and authorities at this stage have not been asked to
indicate their willingness to be involved in Payment By Results. What is not clear is
if the £100,000 for the coordinators will still be made available to local authorities if
they do not take part in Payment By Results. Further guidance is awaited.
4.0

Progress

4.1

Work on a project proposal is currently in hand and this will be reported to Cabinet
for approval on 26 March. It is still intended to implement the original proposal to
target the work in a specific locality. This would form the operational base from
which to upscale the work in line with government’s expectations. There are a
number of areas such as working practices and working across boundaries which
need to be addressed. The approach outlined in paragraph 3 allows the work to
start and as it is implemented, identify the necessary workforce changes to be
made.

4.2

Work has started to identify the families who meet the criteria as outlined in 3.2 and
the additional £20,000 will fund the resource to complete this work. Work on the
project proposal will be completed by the end of January 2012. If the project
proposal is approved by Cabinet this will form the basis for locality work on
Community Budgets. By April the number of families who will require this
intervention will be known. Work will have started in one locality and this will be the
base from which the work can be up scaled to meet national expectations.

4.3

In respect of the locality work it is envisaged that 50 families will be involved. There
will be one key worker for ten families. Key worker posts will be met from existing
resources. Given that partner agencies will have an involvement with the families
identified and that any improvements will benefit all involved, partners will be
expected to nominate staff. It is intended that the £100,000 will support the
implementation of the programme and that this approach will reduce the demand
for costly intensive support.

5.0

Finance

5.1

Apart from the additional £20,000 and the possible £100,000 grant there is no
additional funding to implement this programme. It is estimated that the locality
Community Budget programme will require five key workers at an approximate cost
of £200,000 to be met from existing resources.

6.0

Recommendations:
That Wirral Children’s Trust Board note the report.

Appendix 1

Troubled Families Coordinators

Report Author:

Maureen McDaid
Principal Manager (Commissioning/Participation)
Telephone: (0151) 666 4508
email: maureenmcdaid@wirral.gov.uk

Page 15

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 16

Agenda Item 6
WIRRAL CHILDREN’S TRUST BOARD – 24 JANUARY 2012
MONITORING REPORT QUARTER TWO: EARLY INTERVENTION GRANT FUNDED
SERVICES

1.0 Background
1.1 This report informs The Board about the second quarter’s performance of Early
Intervention Grant commissioned services.
After contracts were awarded,
performance measures to underpin service delivery were agreed with each of the
service providers. The Priority areas for which services were commissioned were:
PA1 – Parenting/Compromised Parenting
PA1 – Short Breaks for Disabled Children
PA3 – Risk taking Behaviour in Children and Young People
1.2

Delivery against the performance measures have been RAG rated Red, Amber or
Green. A Red rating denotes underperformance; Amber reflects work in progress
broadly in line with expectations and Green is meeting or exceeding expectations.
Red and Amber ratings are followed up by commissioners in one to one discussions
at which corrective actions are identified to improve performance.

2.0 Introduction
2.1

From 2011/2012 the Early Intervention Grant (EIG) replaced specific grant funding
for a range of programmes supporting children, young people and families:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

2.2

Funding for EIG will run from 2011 until 2015. The guidance from the Department
for Education indicates that the EIG should support the following services:
•
•
•
•

2.3

0-19
Think Family
Teenage Pregnancy
Positive Activities for Young People (PAYP)
Sure Start
Youth Opportunity Fund
Youth Crime Action Plan
Young People’s Alcohol and Substance Misuse
Aiming High for Disabled Children (AHDC)

Sure Start Children’s’ Centres
Short breaks for disabled children
Targeted support for vulnerable young people
Targeted support for families with multiple problems.

Early Intervention Grant funded services are delivered within the following
principles:

Page 17

•
•
•
•

Early intervention: to intervene to stop the problem developing.
Early prevention: acting proactively to ensure that problems do not arise in the
first place.
Early identification: identifying problems early or identifying the risk of
problems early.
Personalisation: the provision of greater personalised support.

2.4

In Wirral, the Early Intervention Grant (EIG) has been used to drive service delivery
which is prompt, appropriate, effective and planned around the family and the child.
The Dashboard for each priority is attached as appendices A (PA1 Parenting /
Compromised Parenting), B (PA2 Short Breaks for Disabled Children), C1 and C2
(PA3 Risk Taking Behaviour in Children and Young people, targeted support and
Universal Support)

3.0

Performance returns

3.1

The performance returns reported in each of the priority areas:
Priority Area 1 (P.A.1) Parenting/Compromised Parenting

3.2

There are thirteen areas and two areas which were a concern to delivery in quarter
one. These were Parenting Groups run by Action for Children and Relationship
Abuse in 16-18 year olds being delivered by Barnardo’s. The RAG rating for both
these areas was red

3.3

In quarter two Action for Children have begun to deliver in 3 of their 4 areas and by
the end of quarter three it is expected that they will be on track to deliver this
service. Barnardo’s have also begun to deliver. Both areas have changed from red
to amber.

3.4

One of the highlights in this quarter for PA.1 is the development of a Parenting
Course for Parents with children and young people with ADHD. This is in
partnership with Wirral NHS and it is being piloted and targeted at those children
and young people who have mild to moderate ADHD as a clinical pathway with a
view evaluate whether this is an alternative to prescribing medication.

3.5

Over the past 6 months PA1 has regularly supported 691 families to ensure better
outcomes.
Priority Area 2 (P.A.2) Short Breaks for Disabled Children

3.6

There are 13 areas and in quarter one the performance of most contracts are on
target except for two which are red. Some contracts had delivered slightly less than
expected due to lead in time but all are now delivering effectively and are rated as
’amber’ or ‘green’.
The 2 services demonstrating concerns in quarter one were:

3.6

i)

Weekend Activities delivered by the Sports Development Unit of Cultural
Services. The sessions had not started by the end of quarter 1 and were
due to start in October 2011. The contract expected delivery over 46 weeks
in the year which cannot take place given the lead in time to establish

Page 18

sessions. The commissioner and provider have discussed more sessions
being delivered each weekend to deliver the agreed volume.
In quarter two the service is now established and numbers attending are
good. There is still some concern they will deliver the expected outputs by
the end of the contract. The commissioner will meet in January 2012 to
confirm if they can, or discuss a claw back under a variation of contract.
3.6

ii)

Contract Carers Scheme, delivered by Action for Children. This service has
been more difficult to establish than first anticipated by both the provider and
commissioner, due to challenges of recruiting full time carers. The contract
is a continuation from an original contract for the period 1st November 200931st March 2011. Two carers have now been appointed with children
allocated who carers have met and carried out introductory sessions such as
tea visits. Therefore the delivery started in October 2011. The provider is
changing employment arrangements to be more flexible for other carers to
be recruited.

3.7

The contract carer scheme is now delivering with extremely positive feedback from
families and the service is clearly meeting a need for a target group of children.
The total output will still not be as expected for this contract and the commissioner
is meeting with the provider in January to discuss this and confirm next steps.
Priority Area 3 (P.A.3) Risk Taking Behaviour in Children and Young People

3.8

In quarter one the areas of concern in targeted provision were Enhanced Outreach
Play for young people aged 8- 13 and Enhanced Outreach Sports. The Enhanced
Outreach Play is still red and this is due to the non appointment of Play Workers.
The Enhanced Outreach Sport has progressed to Amber and it is anticipated that
this will improve in the next quarter. In the Universal element of PA 3 the area of
concern was the Outdoor Education Programme. There was an issue with the
external provider who did not have the capacity to deliver the required programme.
Performance in this area has moved to Green.

3.9

In quarter two there is more scope for analysis and to take account of the expected
outputs and performance. On a positive note for PA3 there has been an increase in
the number of front line staff trained by Response, Integrated Youth Support
Service in Alcohol and Substance Misuse. As a result more young people are
being supported to consider their alcohol/substance usage and helped to make
better informed choices on the impact of their relationships and health.

3.10

Performance expectations in the Universal element of P.A. 3 have been met or
exceeded examples in respect of Big Nights however attendances were varied.
The events had positive feedback but the take up might have been greater had they
taken place in neutral venues as opposed to being linked to specific youth venues.
Commissioners will be following up performance in the Providers Forum meetings
and in one to one performance review meetings.

Page 19

4.0

Recommendations:

4.1

That Wirral Children’s Trust Board note the report

Appendices:
Appendix A :PA1: Dashboard for Parenting / Compromised parenting
Appendix B : PA2 : Dashboard for Short Breaks for Disabled Children
Appendix C1:
PA3 Risk taking Behaviour in Children and Young People (Targeted
Interventions)
Appendix C2:
PA3 Risk taking Behaviour in Children and Young People (Universal
access)

Report Author:
Name
Maureen Mc Daid
Title
Principal Manager (Commissioning/ Participation)
Phone:
0151 666-4508
Email:
maureenmcdaid@wirral.gov.uk

Page 20

PA1.2.1.b Action for Children

Triple P Parenting Programme

PA1.2.1a Action for Children

PA1.1 Early Intervention Home
Visiting Home Start

Service/Provider

Home Visiting 5-19

PA1.2.3 Catholic Children's Society

PA1.2.2 Catch 22
Intensive family support

PA1.2.1.d Action of Children
Strengthening Families/Strengthening
Communities

PA1.2.1.c Action for Children
Strengthening Families 10 -14

Nurturing Parenting Programme

120 Families

75 families

5 Parenting Groups

6 Parenting Groups

8 Parenting Groups

14 Parenting Groups

250 families

Predicted
Outputs

45

65

0

0

1

1

139

80

55

2

2

167

Green

Green

Red

Red

Red

Red

Green

Green

Green

Red

Red

Amber

Amber

Green

Actual Actual
R/A/G R/A/G
Outputs Outputs
Qtr 1 Qtr 2
Qtr 1
Qtr 2

Appendix A: PA1 EIG Parenting/Compromised Parenting

Page 21

This organisation is performing well and have had a high demand for their service. They are currently supporting 80 families which
in turn supports 158 children. They have also completed work with 22 families this quarter. From their evaluations over 50% of
the parents worked with are either a lone parent or have a disability. On completion of evaluation 100% reported that they had
improved mental health with 66% reporting a reduction in risk taking behaviour.

This organisation is performing well and have had a high demand for their service. They are currently supporting 55 families with
17 new families being assessed and matched with a key worker. They have regularly supported 83 families since July. 66% of
families rated the service as successful and on completion of the service, 92% had a reduction in anti-social and offending
behaviour which reduces the risk to their children and themselves. 86% reported a reduction in the number of incidents of
domestic violence with 76% reporting an improvement in children and young people's attendance and behaviour at school which in
turn has reduced their levels of truancy and exclusion

Although they have not delivered any of these courses there are firm plans to deliver 2 courses in Quarter 3 which will bring them
on track for this area. This means that in the next quarter this rating will change from red to either amber or green depending on
performance.

As yet there are no plans to deliver this course. Part of the difficulty with this is that there are this is a labour intensive course and
needs trained practitioners. In discussion with the provider it has been agreed that we will be issuing a variance to this contract to
reflect this underperformance.

This organisation has sub contracted 4 nurturing programmes to Catholic Children's society as well as Parenting Solutions. By the
end of Quarter 3 (March 2012) they will have delivered 6 of these programmes which brings them on track to complete delivery.
They supported 23 parents and 100% who completed an evaluation rated the service as successful. With 77% of parents
reporting that they felt that both their confidence and relationships with their children had improved. 72% of parents also reported
that they were able to use strategies learnt to cope better with their child's behaviour.

The commissioner for this area has had regular meetings with this provider to ensure that delivery and outcomes are achieved.
Part of the reason for this is that the organisation has reported that they have had difficulty in recruiting staff as they have
successfully appointed 3 times and the people have withdrawn because the contract offered is too short. This is due to the short
term funding of EIG as well as a shortage of qualified parenting practitioners. They have now delivered 2 courses this quarter and
firm plans are in place and actively seeking referrals for 6 more courses for quarter 3 with plans to deliver another 4 within Quarter
4. By the end of Quarter 3 (March 2012) they will have delivered 10 courses which will bring them on track to complete delivery. A
point worth noting is that they are piloting a Triple P course for parents of children with ADHD in partnership with NHS Wirral. This
will be targeted at children who are either awaiting a diagnosis or have mild to moderate ADHD as an alternative to prescribing
medication.

This organisation is on target to achieve their outputs. Since July they have supported 203 families which in turn has supported
274 children under 5. In over 95% of parents who have completed an assessment considered the support received to be
successful. Nearly 80% families have been supported earlier to reduce inappropriate referrals and over 80% have received home
safety advice/equipment

Comments

Service/Provider

PA1.2.5 Wirral Multicultural
Organisation

PA1.2.4b Barnardos
Domestic Violence 16-18

PA1.2.4a Zero Centre
Domestic Violence 5-13

YISP

PA 1. YOS Parenting

PA1.2.6 Barnardos Young Carers

Family Support for BME

Page 22
36

37

70 young people

89

32

3

11

37

54

108

51

12

17

Green

Green

Green

Green

Red

Amber

Green

Green

Amber

Green

Amber

Amber

Actual Actual
R/A/G R/A/G
Outputs Outputs
Qtr 1 Qtr 2
Qtr 1
Qtr 2

100 parents

140 young people

100 families

65 young people

80 children

Predicted
Outputs

This service is currently supporting 37 young people and they have only one young person has completed their intervention
therefore outcomes are not available yet although a significantly factor is that none of the young people from this cohort have reoffended.

This organisation is currently supporting 54 parents which in turn is 88 children and young people but have actually worked with 82
parents. Over 70% reported that this service was successful with 28% rating it as average and on completion of the service over
80% reported that their confidence had improved and that they were experiencing better relationships with their children. The
same percentage of parents reported that they had experienced a wider circle of acquaintances which reduced the need for
statutory intervention.

This organisation has supported 143 families since July 2011 and the number of children and young people they are currently
supporting is 108. Over 60% of the parents have a disability which has an impact on the children and can increase their caring
role. From the assessments completed 82% rated the service as successful. The outcomes stated are slightly lower than
expected but this is due in part to a crossover from PSS ( the previous provider) and young peoples natural transition after being
with PSS for length of time and actions completed/no longer needing service.

This organisation has regularly supported 30 families which in turn supports 51 children. Over 65% of the families supported are
lone parents. One of the main outcomes for this organisation is to help agencies cooperate more effectively in relation to BME
children, young people and their families and have been actively involved in supporting Seacombe Children's Centre to enable a
Women only Strengthening Families/Strengthening Communities programme. They are also supporting several BME families who
have recently been identified as having children with complex social and communication difficulties and feel isolated by cultural
taboos. In the evaluations completed 100% reported improved mental health.

This is a new programme and they have had a short delay due to recruitment which they have now overcome. They are working
with 12 young people and 33% of them are lone parents aged 16-18 and 33% have an additional need or disability. This
organisation has been working hard to increase their referrals and now have 12 new referrals which are now being processed.
The outcomes are not available as yet as the young people have still to complete their intervention programme.

This project had a short delay due to staff sickness have now delivered 2 courses simultaneously to catch up. They have regularly
supported 26 families and another course is yet to be completed which begun in this quarter but figures will be added to the next
quarter. Out of the cohort that they have supported this quarter 82% were lone parents. 100% of the evaluations received rated
the service as successful and 70% reported that parents had an improved relationship with their children, also 70% of children
attending the programme reported to feeling safer. Over 50% benefited from the course as they were able to discuss their
traumatic experiences in a safe environment. Feedback from the Youth group (11-13/15) has been unanimously excellent.
Parents have reported improved family relationships and communication, in some cases significantly so. Several young men in the
group who were 'acting out' aggressively with each other and peers during the group have spent time addressing that behaviour
and professionals and families report improved and calmer behaviour.

Comments

9

12 sessions

Complex Needs Activity

48 children

45

94%

100%

48

48 sessions

Green

Crossroads

Green

50%

7 children per session 3-5

78%

70%

75%

55%

50%

Complex Health After
School

28

36 sessions

Crossroads

Amber Amber

20 children per session 14

Barnstondale After School

Green

Crossroads

Amber

11

20 children per break

Barnstondale Weekends

Green

Green

ACTION TAKEN/PLANNED: Commissioner to speak to team
leader to ensure referrals are at a maximum.

ACTION TAKEN/PLANNED: meeting arranged with
commissioner, with NHS Wirral, school Headteacher and
Crossroads to discuss actions to aim to improve attendance.
Children attend based on social worker referral.

ACTION TAKEN/PLANNED: Sessions to continue to be
promoted, especially as it is new service this year.
Number of children attending low due to transport not being
available and families resistant to collect children.

They delivered an extra weekend in quarter 1 so have
delivered what was expected in the first 6 months.
The numbers vary each weekend which reflect the needs of
the children to ensure appropriate grouping.
Significant progress has been made to establish a new
service.
Even though numbers are lower than originally expected it is
reaching a group of children who were not accessing short
breaks regularly, therefore meeting a need.

1 weekend

Green

Amber

2 weekend breaks

Activate Arts

Crossroads

Q2
PREDICTED
OUTPUTS
36 sessions
15 children attending
each

Q2
R/A/G

Creative Workshops

Q1
R/A/G

Q2
Q2
ACTUAL
% OF
COMMENTS
OUTPUTS DELIVERY
Significant progress has been made to establish a new
32 sessions 89%
service.
They have changed the day and format of the weekday
17 attending 113%
weekday session based on feedback from young people. This caused a
weekday
couple of weeks delay in this quarter therefore fewer weekday
sessions have been delivered.
22 attending 147%
weekend ACTION TAKEN/PLANNED: They will continue to listen to
weekend
feedback from young people and adapt sessions to meet their
needs.

SERVICE/PROVIDER

2.1 Weekend/Weekday

Appendix B: Short Break Services for Disabled Children- RAG rating 1st July-30th September 2011

Page 23

Wirral Resource Centre

Sports Sessions

WC (Sports Development)

Specialist Playschemes

Activity Clubs
Wirral Play Council

Wirral Autistic Society

SERVICE/PROVIDER

Amber

Green

Green

Q2
R/A/G

88
31
14 weekday
9 weekend

57

95%
117%
69%

95%

Amber Amber 598 sessions

Wirral Autistic Society

PREDICTED
OUTPUTS
279

47%

ACTUAL % OF
OUTPUTS DELIVERY

Service has come across some operational issues
which has reduced the volume of delivery they
expected to be able to do. Full time staff are appointed
but delivery time is predominantly evenings and
weekends.
The commissioner and provider have met and
discussed some points of action to address this
problem and increase delivery.
ACTION TAKEN/PLANNED: agreed Commissioner to
meet with them again in January to discuss how these
issues can be overcome.

COMMENTS

ACTION TAKEN/PLANNED: agreed Wednesday session to
be changed to another day and gain parents feedback.

The Tuesday evening session has been very popular but
numbers have been very low attending the Wednesday
session. To compensate for this they delivered some extra
sessions in the Christmas holidays.

Significant progress made to establish new service. There
have been some changes to weekend session based on
feedback from families that have been discussed with
commissioner and will be implemented.

Continuing to operate effectively.

Q2
Q2
ACTUAL
% OF
COMMENTS
OUTPUTS DELIVERY
56
108%
Sessions format been adjusted to meet needs of families,
continuing to operate effectively.

20 children per session Average of 20 100%
children
52 sessions
44
85%

96 children aged 5-14
29 children aged 14-18
12 weekday sessions
13 weekend sessions

60 sessions

Q2
PREDICTED
OUTPUTS
52 sessions

Q1
Q2
R/A/G R/A/G

Amber Amber

Red

Green

Green

Q1
R/A/G

SERVICE/PROVIDER

2.2 Sitting Service

Play sessions for 0-7

Page 24

Action for Children
Contract Carer
Scheme

SERVICE/PROVIDER

Contract Carers

Red

Q1
R/A/G

100%

ACTUAL
OUTPUTS
2 recruited
5 children
19 nights
51 sessional
hours

There was a delay in recruitment of support workers.
All in place now and number of children accessing
service has increased.

COMMENTS

COMMENTS

ACTION TAKEN/PLANNED: 4 short break carers will
now be recruited instead of contract carers. This will
ensure services are developed quicker.

% OF
COMMENTS
DELIVERY
50%
Difficulty recruiting contract carers.
21%
The contract carers have used time on a sessional
9%
basis getting to know the children through tea visits,
trips etc. This was a total of 51 hours.

92%

ACTUAL % OF
OUTPUTS DELIVERY

21 hours

ACTUAL % OF
OUTPUTS DELIVERY

483 x 2hour sessions 442

PREDICTED
OUTPUTS

21 hours of support

PREDICTED
OUTPUTS

PREDICTED
OUTPUTS
To recruit 4 carers
Amber 24 children to be
supported
218 nights support
delivered

Q2
R/A/G

Q2
R/A/G

Green

Q2
R/A/G

Green

Q1
R/A/G

Green

Q1
R/A/G

Wirral Council Family
Support
Amber

SERVICE/PROVIDER

2.4 Family Support

Wired

SERVICE/PROVIDER

2.3 Direct Payment Support Scheme

Page 25

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 26

2 x 1 week course (5 days)
2 x12 referrals

2 (1 day a week) 12 week
course
12 young people referred

Pa3.1b
Merseyside Fire &
Rescue Life Project

PA3.1b
Merseyside Fire &
Rescue :
Beacon Project

18 units
15-20 young people from
all priority groups

R

A

G

G

R/A/G
Qtr 1

PA3.1b
Youth & Play
Service:
Risk taking
Behaviour 13-19
years (WYT
ARTSMART PLUS)
PA3.1B
Risk Taking
Behaviour
13-19 (Enhanced
Outreach-Sports)

100%

50%

%
activity

R

10 sessions successfully
completed
5 young people recruited
from LAC, receiving
CAHMS service and from
low socioeconomic
background
13 units delivered in
Seacombe area
2 units delivered in Mersey
Park area
15 – 20 participants
registered at each session

2 (1 day a week) 12 week
course
12 young people referred –
9 young people completed
the course (1)
12 young people referred –
5 young people completed
the course

I (1 week, 5 days)
delivered
12 people referred and 12
completed

Actual Outputs

PA3.1a
Youth & Play
Service:
Risk taking
Behaviour 8-13
years (Enhanced
Outreach – Play
Peripatetic Team).

Programme 1 – delivered
via 4 stages
Recruit 20 young people

Predicted Outputs

Service

G

G

R

G

R/A/G
Qtr 2
outputs
A

G

A

R

G

G

R/A/G
outcomes

Appendix C1: Early Intervention Grant Priority Area Three Targeted Provision (1st October- 30th December)) Qtr 2

Page 27

Positive engagement of up to 50% of female
participation
Outreach workers have been signposting yp to
the sessions from surrounding areas – yp
feedback very positive

The young people in this stage will be supported
to progress to be involved in Change4life afterschool club

Additional staff required to deliver this
programme.
Process on hold corporately.

(1) 9 First Aid certificates
9 Asdan awards
9 MFRS completion certificates
(2) 5 First Aid Certificates
5 MFRS completion certificates

12 First Aid Certificates
12 MRFS completion certificate
Dates were incompatible and course will go
ahead in Q3

Impact/Comments

Service

PA3.1 B
Risk Taking
Behaviour 13-19
years (Grange
Baptist)

PA3.1
Positive Futures

PA3.2 Advice /
Guidance / Support
Services (Alcohol
Interventions).

Page 28

60 staff trained to deliver
brief interventions (15 per
quarter.
250 interventions per
quarter
112 per quarter
100%

50%

37 participants attended 2
training sessions.

75% of young people from
priority groups

5 groups – 52 young
people

CIC, young people at risk
from offending, BME

80+ young people per
session

31%

> 300 unique individuals

15 young people per
session
11 sessions per quarter

%
activity

78 unique young people

Full attendance
Unique young people =211
11 sessions

22 units this quarter

Actual Outputs

41 unique young people
from Seacombe)
15 unique young people
from Mersey Park
45 units

Predicted Outputs

ALead
In
Period
ALead
in
period

G

No
Info

G

G

G

R/A/G
Qtr 1

A

A

G

No info

G

G

G

R/A/G
Qtr 2
outputs

N/A

N/A

N/A

G

G

R/A/G
outcomes

Alcohol Alright training has commenced and staff
who have attended are now delivering brief
interventions with young people in relation to
their alcohol use. Initial feedback is very good
with staff reporting increased confidence in
dealing with young people

Successes in addressing previous bullying
issues. Provision for promoting a healthier
lifestyle.
Developing volunteering opportunities for young
people in their community.

Impact/Comments

Service

PA3.3a Youth and
Play (Youth Arts)

Accredited
opportunities

Public
performance

PA3.3a Youth and
Play (Youth Arts)

PA3.3a Youth and
Play (Youth Arts)

8 sessions
per quarter
8-10 young
people per
session
10 units of
arts activities
per week

Predicted
Outputs

Youth Expo
Festival
SWING
175 young
people

30 young
people on
Bronze Arts
award
16 young
people on
OCN Level 1
in Peer
mentoring

10 units
@Pilgrim
Street + 7
units a week
in youth
hubs, clubs,
schools and
voluntary
organisations
128 units in
total
104 new
recruits
229 unique
individuals

7 sessions
21 unique
individuals

Actual
Outputs

100%

100%

100%

94%

%
activity

G

G

G

G

RAG
Q1

G

G

G

G

R/A/G/
Qtr 2
sessions

G

G

G

G

R/A/G
Qtr2
attendance

N/A

G

G

N/A

R/A/G
LDD
Qtr 2

On going programme
100% of young people are recruited on to accreditation
schemes
Sessions are provided for young people with additional
needs and integration has proved successful facilitated
by the role of the peer mentor. 59 young people with a
disability attend regularly, 2 of those are now developing
as Peer Educators

“xxx has gained more confidence and developed skills with

Five performances were successfully delivered.
Over 600 parents, carers and friends attended performances.
The following is a quote from one on the carers:

!

!
!

Programme progressing according to targets set
Universal provision
As a result of the taster sessions, specific projects have been set
up with the following schools:
! Observatory School
! Hospital School
! Multi-cultural Centre
! Due to demand a Visual Arts Project will be provided
from Saturday’s in January.
! Dance work with young men has focussed on anger
management

100% participants have achieved a nationally accredited
outcome

Impact/Comments

Appendix C2 (PA3): Early Intervention Grant Priority Area Three Universal Provision (1st October- 30th December) Qtr 2

PA3.3a Youth and
Play (Outdoor
accredited
outcomes)

Page 29

One event
Capacity 120
10% in
attendance
with learning

PA3.3b Involve
Northwest
West Kirby

PA3.3b Involve
Northwest
Eastham

Predicted
Outputs

One event
2/12/2011
Capacity 120
10% in
attendance
with learning
difficulties
and
disabilities
One event
9/12/2011
Capacity 120
10% in
attendance
with learning
difficulties
and
disabilities
One event
16/12/2011
Capacity 120
10% in
attendance
with learning
difficulties
and
disabilities

Service

PA3.3b Involve
Northwest
Big Nights
Wallasey

PA3.3b Involve
Northwest
Shaftesbury

Page 30

47 attendees
– mixed age
range
11 in
attendance

39 attendees
– mixed age
range from
13-19
10yp with
learning
difficulties
and
disabilities
79 attendees
– mixed age
range
5 in
attendance
with learning
difficulties
and
disabilities
47 attendees
– mixed age
range
No attendees
with LED

involved in 5
public
performances

Actual
Outputs

100%
output
39% in
attenda
nce

100%
output
39%
attenda
nce
0%LDD

100%ou
tput
66%
attenda
nce
6% LDD

100%
output
32%
attenda
nce
100%
LDD

%
activity

G

G

G

G

RAG
Q1

G

G

G

G

R/A/G/
Qtr 2
sessions

R

G

R

A

A

R

G

R/A/G
LDD
Qtr 2

R

R/A/G
Qtr2
attendance

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!
!

Good feedback from attendees. Response was in
evidence.
As with Shaftesbury and Wallasey the option to use

Q1 planning and preparation in place
Feedback indicated that opening times were a
disappointment (9.30 pm finish)
Inconsistent advertising in the area.
Restricted access for those with disabilities as event took
place on the second floor.
Brook and Response were in attendance and engaged
with 18yp
Discussions have taken place with the provider to
identify corrective actions for future events. Neutral
venues and improved marketing have been identified.
Q1 planning and preparation in place

Q1 planning and preparation in place
Feedback indicated that young people really enjoyed
engaging with the Impact Dance crew.
Brook confirmed engagement with 15 yp throughout the
evening

meeting other people outside his peer group.”
“xxx has only been coming for a few weeks but really enjoys
technical theatre. He is very quiet and shy but doesn’t mind
coming on his own- feels useful.”
! Q1 planning and preparation in place
! Poor weather and delay in marketing responsible for
lower attendance than expected
! Brook in attendance and engaged with 5 young people in
relation to Sexual Health and 15 attendees in relation to
personal interests and aspirations.

Impact/Comments

PA3.1B
Positive Futures

80 units per
quarter
15yp per
session

64 sessions
> 35 young
people per
session

48 sessions

Birkenhead Youth
Club
St Mary’s The Bank

difficulties
and
disabilities

Predicted
Outputs

30units
30 young
people
engaged

Service

PA3.4 Youth and
Play
Drama Workshop

Page 31

Number of
unique young
people =408

64 sessions
80 unique
individuals
Including
those at risk
from being
excluded and
at risk from
offending
40 units

with learning
difficulties
and
disabilities
30 units
30 young
people have
been
involved as
Peer
Educators
110 young
people
consulted on
RTB issues
across Wirral
48 sessions

Actual
Outputs

80%

50%

100%
on
session
s

100%

100%
output
100%
attenda
nce

23%
LDD

%
activity

R

G

G

G

RAG
Q1

R

G

G

G

R/A/G/
Qtr 2
sessions

A

G?

No info

G

R/A/G
Qtr2
attendance

No
info

No
info

G

R/A/G
LDD
Qtr 2

Sessions were not able to go ahead as partner agencies were
not able to go ahead ((Community Group West)
Young People.
Young people had indicated they wanted certain activities and
then did not attend and sessions were cancelled.
Discussions with provider have identified the marketing has to be
improved and provider to identify how to support young people to
attend activities.
This will be discussed at provider forum.

100% participants have achieved a nationally recognised
accredited outcome.

Work is on target to deliver three packages of drama/dance
performance and workshop to be delivered in Youth Hubs, Youth
Clubs and Schools from March – June 2012.

!

neutral venues if similar event to take place in future will
be considered.
Marketing of events has increased.

Impact/Comments

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 32

Agenda Item 7
WIRRAL CHILDREN’S TRUST BOARD – 24

TH

JANUARY 2012

Child Poverty Update

1.0 Background
Wirral is producing a Child Poverty Strategy and Action Plan. To support this, the local
authority established a local advisory group to review the evidence and make
recommendations to the Council and its partners about local action to tackle child poverty.
Representation on this group (the Wirral Child and Family Poverty Working Group) is
drawn from the local authority, voluntary, community and faith, housing, health, and
education, employment and skills sectors.
2.0 Progress Update
Milestones regarding the development of the strategy and action plan since the last report
to the Children’s Trust Board:
!

The discussions of the Working Group, and wider consultation with partners, have
informed the development of the draft ‘Roots and Wings’ strategy and action plan
which is set out at Appendix 1. Central to these discussions have been the need for
all partners to work with each other to add value to existing provision and the need to
utilise the positive assets of local communities in raising the aspirations of children and
families.

!

This draft strategy and action plan has been approved by Wirral Council Cabinet and
further consultation and a work is ongoing to produce a final version in consultation with
partners. Comments on any aspect of the draft are welcomed.

!

Work is also underway to develop a new Children and Young People’s Plan (CYPP) for
2012-13 overseen by the Children’s Trust Executive. Through this process projects and
activities are being developed related to the child poverty agenda. These key projects
will be included in the action plan.

!

Child poverty is included as a key theme in Council planning for 2012-13 in respect of
draft Corporate and Department Plans.

!

The consultation to develop Neighbourhood Plans for Wirral’s Area Forum areas which
took place at the end of last year questions which will supplement evidence about child
poverty issues and inform actions in the final strategy and plan. The information will
help us to better understand the services and characteristics local neighbourhoods
should have in terms of successfully supporting family life and addressing issues of
poverty within communities.

!

The Council’s budget for 2011-12 includes £10,000 to support targeted engagement in
respect of developing the strategy. A project has been commissioned to evaluate the
impact of existing local initiatives and programmes on families in poverty with a
particular focus on identifying what interventions have been most successful in
supporting parents into sustainable employment. The outcomes of this evaluation will
be circulated widely to all partners and used to inform the development of action plan.

Page 33

!

Once the plan is finalised, clear governance arrangements will need to be in place to
ensure that the strategy and action plan are delivered effectively and that links continue
to be made with the work of key partnerships. Work is underway to develop these
governance arrangements in line with the review of the Local Strategic Partnership.

!

Development work is also underway regarding a performance framework for monitoring
outcomes achieved from the delivery of the action plan.

!

The work to develop Wirral’s strategy and action plan is closely aligned with the
Liverpool City Region (LCR) child poverty and life chances strategy, which has now
been launched and is available at www.liverpoolcitystrategyces.org.uk

!

The Children’s Trust agreed that the child poverty training module be compulsory for all
staff and volunteers working with children and young people. The development of the
module is almost complete and will be added to the Children’s Workforce common
induction programme to ensure all staff are trained in this area. An e-learning module is
also planned.

!

Under the ‘roots and wings’ banner, pilot work is underway regarding approaches to
supporting teenage mothers from conception onwards.

Appendix 1 – Draft Child Poverty Strategy and Initial Action Plan

3.0 Recommendations:
3. 1 Wirral Children’s Trust Board notes the progress made.
3.2. Wirral Children’s Trust Board reviews the draft strategy and action plan and makes
recommendations regarding future development.

Report Authors:
Nancy Clarkson
Strategic Service Manager, Infrastructure

Contact:
Phone: 666 4329
Email: nancyclarkson@wirral.gov.uk

Jane Morgan
Policy Unit

Phone: 691 8140
Email: janemorgan@wirral.gov.uk

Bev Morgan
Manager, Home-start Wirral
Chair, Wirral Child and Family Poverty
Working Group

Phone: 647 8369
Email: bevmorgan@homestartwirral.co.uk

Page 34

APPENDIX 1

OUR VISION
As partners in the future of Wirral, we will work together to reduce the
numbers of children and young people living in poverty and support them to
build the foundations for prosperous, healthy and happy lives. We will also
work together to raise the aspirations of all of our children and young
people and their families so that their dreams for themselves and their
communities can be achieved.
We are clear that the best way to achieve this vision is through:
! Ensuring that children and families can easily access the services they
need and that partners work together to provide more joined up
approaches to eliminating poverty and deprivation;
! Targeting our efforts to make work the best route out of poverty for Wirral
families;
! Providing effective support for Wirral families who need help to manage
debt or issues of financial exclusion;
! Maximising the impact of all we do to improve the life chances of Wirral’s
children;
! Recognising and supporting the role that safe and high quality
neighbourhoods and thriving communities can have in transforming lives.
We will not be complacent about this vision. We will challenge ourselves
and each other to maintain a clear focus on working together and taking
practical action to achieve our common goals of reducing poverty and
harnessing the talent and ambitions of Wirral’s children, families and
communities. We want everyone in Wirral to sign up to our vision; you can
do this at www.wirral.gov.uk/rootsandwings
Page 1 of 21

Page 35

If I had two wishes, I know what they would be
I'd wish for Roots to cling to, and Wings to set me free;
Roots of inner values, like rings within a tree, and Wings of independence to seek my destiny.
Roots to hold forever to keep me safe and strong,
To let me know you love me, when I've done something wrong;
To show me by example, and help me learn to choose,
To take those actions every day to win instead of lose.
Just be there when I need you, to tell me it's all right,
To face my fear of falling when I test my wings in flight;
Don't make my life too easy, it's better if I try,
And fail and get back up myself, so I can learn to fly.
If I had two wishes, to make my dreams come true,
And they could just be granted, by someone such as you;
I wouldn't ask for money or any shop-bought things,
The greatest gifts I'd ask for are simply Roots and Wings.
(inspired by A Child's Bedtime Song taken from Denis Waitley's Excerpts From the Seeds of
Greatness Treasury)

CONTENTS
1.

POLICY BACKGROUND

2.

UNDERSTANDING CHILD POVERTY

3.

TAKING ACTION IN WIRRAL

4.

WORKSTREAMS

4.1

Ensuring that children and families can easily access the services they need and
that partners work together to provide more joined up approaches to recognising
and addressing poverty
Targeting our efforts to make work the best route out of poverty for Wirral families
Providing effective support for Wirral families who need help to manage debt or
issues of financial inclusion
Maximising the impact of all we do to improve the life chances of Wirral’s children
and young people
Recognising and supporting the role that safe and high quality neighbourhoods
and thriving communities can have in transforming lives.

4.2
4.3
4.4
4.5

Page 2 of 21

Page 36

1.

POLICY BACKGROUND

The development of Wirral’s child and family poverty strategy is set against a policy
background of key legislation, independent reviews and national and sub-regional
strategies. These are described in the following pages.
Child Poverty Act 2010
The Child Poverty Act 2010 sets the ambition to end child poverty by 2020, and
highlights the associated national and local actions required. The commitment to end
child poverty was maintained by the Coalition Government elected in May 2010. The
Coalition Programme for Government included a number of initiatives related to the
eradication of child poverty, including intentions to reform the tax credit system; free
early education for disadvantaged 2 year olds; re-focusing of Sure Start on the neediest
families and; re-focusing of Sure Start funding for outreach services to increase the
number of Sure Start Health Visitors. Advisory guidance was published by the Child
Poverty Unit in September 2010 to support local authorities in carrying out their duties.
This covers the key areas of the duty to cooperate, to understand local needs, and to
develop and deliver a strategy.
Independent Review on Poverty and Life Chances, led by Frank Field MP
In December 2010, the Independent Review on Poverty and Life Chances led by Frank
Field MP, produced the report ‘The Foundation Years: preventing poor children
becoming poor adults’. That report emphasised that:
“We have found overwhelming evidence that children’s life chances are most heavily
predicated on their development in the first five years of life. It is family background,
parental education, good parenting and the opportunities for learning and development
in those crucial years that together matter more to children than money, in determining
whether their potential is realised in adult life. The things that matter most are a healthy
pregnancy; good maternal mental health; secure bonding with the child; love and
responsiveness of parents along with clear boundaries, as well as opportunities for a
child’s cognitive, language and social and emotional development. Good services matter
too: health services, Children’s Centres and high quality childcare. Later interventions to
help poorly performing children can be effective but, in general, the most effective and
cost-effective way to help and support young families is in the earliest years of a child’s
life”.
Independent Review on Early Intervention, led by Graham Allen
In July 2010, the Government announced the setting up of an independent commission
on early intervention to be chaired by Graham Allen, MP for Nottingham North. An initial
report, ‘Early Intervention: The Next Steps’, setting out the rationale for early
intervention, was published in January 2011. A second report, published in June 2011,
detailed the new funding options needed to resource early intervention. In the context of
the Allen report, the term ‘Early Intervention’ is used to refer to the general approaches,
plus specific policies and programmes, which help to give children aged 0 to 3 years, the
Page 3 of 21

Page 37

social and emotional foundation they need to reach their full potential, and to those
which help older children become the good parents of tomorrow.
In the ‘Early Intervention: The Next Steps’ report, Graham Allen comments that:
“There are now two competing cultures: the dominant one – of late intervention – and
the growing one – of Early Intervention. It is not an either/or – we must continue to swat
the mosquitoes but we can drain the swamp too. The bleak truth is that decades of
expensive late intervention have failed. Major social problems have got worse not better:
despite heroic frontline efforts tackling the symptoms, their causes often remain
unaddressed”.
A second report from Graham Allen, titled ‘Early Intervention: Smart Investment,
Massive Savings’ sets out how we can pay for those programmes within existing
resources and by attracting new non government money. The report argues that:
Early Intervention investment has the potential to make massive savings in public
expenditure, reduce the costs of educational underachievement, drink and drug abuse,
teenage pregnancy, vandalism and criminality, court and police costs, academic
underachievement, lack of aspiration to work and the bills from lifetimes wasted while
claiming benefits.
Review of Early Years Foundation Stage – Dame Claire Tickell
In July 2010, the Government asked Dame Clare Tickell to carry out an independent
review of the Early Years Foundation Stage (EYFS) to consider how this could be less
bureaucratic and more focused on supporting children’s early learning. The Foundation
Years refers to a child’s earliest years in life, from pregnancy to age five.
The report concluded that particular attention should be given to ensuring that children
who have specific needs, or come from particularly disadvantaged backgrounds, are
identified and supported as early as possible, given the overwhelming evidence of the
positive impact that this has. Ensuring a close working relationship between those
people in health, early years and education alongside parents and carers is an absolute
pre-requisite to this. The Tickell report added that more needs to be done to “oil the
wheels of multi-agency working, particularly for children who need additional support”.
Fair Society, Healthy Lives – Sir Michael Marmot
In November 2008, Professor Sir Michael Marmot was asked by the Secretary of State
for Health to chair an independent review to propose the most effective evidence-based
strategies for reducing health inequalities in England from 2010. The review concluded:
“People with higher socioeconomic position in society have a greater array of life
chances and more opportunities to lead a flourishing life. They also have better health.
The two are linked: the more favoured people are, socially and economically, the better
their health”.

Page 4 of 21

Page 38

The Marmot review determined that reducing health inequalities will require action on six
policy objectives:
!
!
!
!
!
!

Give every child the best start in life
Enable all children, young people and adults to maximise their capabilities and have
control over their lives
Create fair employment and good work for all
Ensure healthy standard of living for all
Create and develop healthy and sustainable places and communities
Strengthen the role and impact of ill health prevention

The National Strategy
Further to the findings of the national reviews led by Frank Field MP and Graham Allen
MP, the Government launched a new strategy document in 2011 - ‘A New Approach to
Child Poverty: Tackling the Causes of Disadvantage and Transforming Families’ Lives’.
The strategy was released at the same time as the Government’s Social Mobility
Strategy, ‘‘Opening Doors, Breaking Barriers: A strategy for Social Mobility’. The
Government argues that increasing social mobility and achieving social justice will
ultimately contribute towards success in ending child poverty.
This is the Government’s first national Child Poverty Strategy, setting out a new
approach to tackling poverty for this Parliament and up to 2020. Central to the strategy
are:
!
!
!
!
!

Strengthening families
Encouraging responsibility
Promoting work
Guaranteeing fairness
Providing support to the most vulnerable

The government argues that income measures and targets do not tell the full story. “Our
radical programme of reform to deliver social justice will focus on combating
worklessness and educational failure and preventing family and relationship breakdown
with the aim of supporting the most disadvantaged groups struggling at the bottom of
society”.
Addressing the root causes of poverty and not just the symptoms means recognising the
importance of the context in which a child is raised, alongside factors including
education and income. Therefore, there is a focus on strong families, relationships and
parenting support.
The government will measure the success of this approach to tackling child poverty
through a new set of indicators.
There are still many complexities within this approach and the new national strategy
recognises that more needs to be done to identify extreme poverty.

Page 5 of 21

Page 39

Liverpool City Region Child Poverty and Life Chances Strategy 2011 – 2014 (currently
being considered through City Region governance arrangements)
The work being undertaken by Wirral is linked to a wider Liverpool City Region
approach. The Liverpool City region Child Poverty and Life Chances Commission, also
chaired by Frank Field MP, was established to lead activity across the region and has
driven the development of the Liverpool City Region Strategy which has two broad aims.
These are underpinned by seven strategic actions and are the areas that the
Commission will focus its efforts on during the life of this strategy (2011-14).
Aim 1: Ensure the best possible start in life for children and young people to
improve their life chances
Actions
1. Support effective parenting and drive improvements in foundation years services
2. Enhance children’s social and emotional development and reduce gaps in
educational achievement
3. Promote prevention and early intervention approaches to reduce health inequalities
4. Improve the quality of places and support strong communities to minimise the impact
of disadvantage
Aim 2: Maximise Family Income
Actions
1. Improve access to suitable financial services and support families to make good
financial decisions
2. Optimise employment opportunities by removing barriers to good quality and
sustainable employment
3. Support parents to progress in work
The long-term Liverpool City Region approach that will be delivered through three
strategies up to 2020 – coinciding with the National Child Poverty Strategy target date to
eradicate child poverty.

Page 6 of 21

Page 40

2.

UNDERSTANDING CHILD AND FAMILY POVERTY

There is extensive debate about the way in which child poverty is measured; however,
the use of household income to measure poverty is the most universally accepted
method and provides us with statistics about levels of child poverty in the UK, the
Liverpool City Region and Wirral.
Child Poverty in the UK

The UK has one of the worst rates of child poverty in the industrialised world.
Nearly 4 million children are living in poverty in the UK (after housing costs).
The proportion of children living in poverty grew from 1 in 10 in 1979 to 1 in 3 in 1998.
Today, 30 per cent of children in Britain are living in poverty.
It is estimated that 1.9 million children live in workless households.
Source: End Child Poverty website

Child Poverty in the Liverpool City Region
The Liverpool City Region is home to 1.5 million people, which includes around 327,000
children in 191,000 families. The City Region comprises the boroughs of Halton,
Knowsley, Sefton, St. Helens, Wirral and the City of Liverpool. Together these districts
make up a functional economic area with approximately 90% of all residents both living
and working in the City Region.

Around 90,000 children in the Liverpool City Region are growing up in poverty.
The majority of children in poverty in the City Region live in lone parent families (77%)
Most children living in poverty live in the City Region live in households claiming Income
Support (IS) or Job Seekers Allowance (JSA); the City Region has a higher proportion of
lone parent families on IS / JSA benefit than England.
Over 85% of City Region children living in poverty are under 16 years of age, and nearly
60% are under 11.
All local authority areas in the City Region, including Wirral, have severe concentrations
of child poverty.
Source: Draft LCR Poverty and Life Chances Strategy

Page 7 of 21

Page 41

Child Poverty in Wirral
24.2% of children in Wirral are living in poverty – around 17,000 of our children and
young people
Nearly 15,000 of these children and young people are under 16
The overall statistics mask huge differences in child poverty within the borough – a
number of wealthier areas in Wirral have very low – or no – rates of child poverty whilst
in some areas the levels can be as high as 72% of children under 16 living in poverty
Free School Meals data is an important and up-to-date method of identifying children
and young people from low income families - the percentage of pupils who are eligible
for Free School Meals in Wirral primary schools is greater than both national and North
West averages

Which areas are most affected by child poverty in Wirral?
The tables below compare the neighbourhoods and communities with the highest and
lowest percentages of children under 16 living in poverty. This demonstrates the stark
differences in different parts of Wirral. Wirral has 11 Area Forums, which represent
groups of electoral wards. The Area Forum areas most affected by child poverty, as
indicated in the tables below, are Bidston & Claughton, Birkenhead, Tranmere & Rock
Ferry, Liscard and Seacombe, and Leasowe, Moreton & Saughall Massie.
Community /
Neighbourhood
Ilchester Road

Highest
Area Forum
Bidston &
Claughton

63.8%

Lowest
Community /
Area Forum
Neighbourhood
The Beacons
Heswall,
Pensby &
Thingwall
Wirral Country
Heswall,
Park
Pensby &
Thingwall
Davenport Road Heswall,
Pensby &
Thingwall
Bertram Drive
West Wirral

1.7%

63.8%

Dawpool Drive

1.6%

%
children
72.2%

Mayor Road

Bidston &
Claughton

69.9%

Paterson Street

Birkenhead,
Tranmere &
Rock Ferry
Leasowe,
Moreton &
Saughall
Massie
Liscard &
Seacombe
Birkenhead,
Tranmere &
Rock Ferry

63.9%

62.4%

Cawfield Drive

Birkenhead,
Tranmere &

62.3%

Whitfield
Common

Leasowe Sports
Centre

Seacombe Ferry
St Catherines
Hospital

Harrogate Road

Page 8 of 21

Page 42

Bromborough
and Eastham
Greasby,
Frankby, Irby,
Upton &
Woodchurch
Heswall,
Pensby &

%
children
1.8%

1.7%

1.7%

1.6%

1.5%

Bidston Moss

Rock Ferry
Bidston &
Claughton

62.0%

Huwell Drive

Bidston &
Claughton
Birkenhead,
Tranmere &
Rock Ferry

61.6%

Langdale Road

61.6%

Upland Road

Union Street

Liscard &
Seacombe

59.2%

Heswall Golf
Course

Victoria Fields

Birkenhead,
Tranmere &
Rock Ferry

58.1%

Wirral Country
Park

Graving Docks
Expressway
Business Park

Thingwall
Greasby,
Frankby, Irby,
Upton &
Woodchurch
Bebington &
Clatterbridge
Greasby,
Frankby, Irby,
Upton &
Woodchurch
Heswall,
Pensby &
Thingwall
Greasby,
Frankby, Irby,
Upton &
Woodchurch

1.5%

1.3%
1.3%

0.0%

0.0%

Source: HMRC, NI116, August 2008

Which groups of children and families are most affected?
Wirral is amongst the ten most deprived areas for employment in the country. Children
whose parents are among the long-term unemployed are more likely to be affected by
poverty and, in the east of the borough, there are concentrations of long-term
unemployment and low skills in some of the most disadvantaged communities in
England.
A related issue for Wirral is the fact that there is a significant minority (9%) of Wirral’s
young people who are not in education, employment and training. Despite year on year
reductions in this group, which have been achieved in light of the recession, numbers
are still too high. Young people from disadvantaged areas and vulnerable groups,
including those with learning difficulties and disabilities and looked after children, are
disproportionately represented.
Many socially-excluded children can become involved in offending and anti-social
behaviour very early in their lives and the positive or negative experiences they have
around the age of 12 can have a long-lasting impact on their later life chances. Studies
show that there is a link between low income, social isolation and youth offending.
Children in one parent families are more likely to be affected by poverty. The
communities and neighbourhoods with the highest number of lone parent benefit
claimants are to be found in the Bidston and Claughton Area Forum area.
Whilst Wirral’s teenage conception rate has declined in line with the national average,
teenage pregnancy is still an issue for Wirral not least because of the often complex
factors that can be involved and the likelihood that the children of teenage parents will
be affected by poverty. Between 1998 and 2008, Wirral achieved a 21% reduction in the
teenage conception rate (in 2008 the rate was 40.1 conceptions for every 1,000 women
Page 9 of 21

Page 43

aged between 15-17 years). In 2009, however, conception rates in Wirral increased to
44.0 per 1,000 women aged 15-17 years.
Young parents represent 12.2% of the total numbers of young people not in education,
employment and training. 11.6% of mothers aged below 20 take up ‘Care to Learn’
funding to cover childcare costs to return to education or training. This is used as a
marker to identify how well areas are engaging with young parents. Wirral is performing
less well than the Merseyside (12.22%) and North West (17.7%) averages.
The recently launched national strategy estimates that, nationally, the proportion of
children in relative poverty is significantly higher in families where at least one member
is disabled than families where no one is disabled. Wirral has higher than the regional
and national averages of working age adults who are disabled according to data from
the Annual Population Survey (March 2010). 21.9% of the working age population is
disabled. This indicates that addressing the impact of poverty on children in families
where a parent is disabled is an issue for Wirral. The consultation undertaken with
partners and practitioners to inform the development of the Wirral strategy suggests that
we need to do more to understand the impact of poverty on children in families with a
member who has learning disabilities or mental health issues.
Children with disabilities are more likely to be affected by poverty. In Wirral, Broadly
22% (16,800) children at any one time will have additional needs which require some
extra support through targeted services; these may be individual or multi-agency
services. These services support groups of children and their families such as those with
special educational needs or disability or those requiring parenting support. A high
proportion of these children will be living in the more disadvantaged areas. Within this
group of 16,800 approximately 2,300 children have more complex needs which require a
high level of specialist support.
The consultation also highlighted that young people leaving care in Wirral are more
likely to experience issues of poverty – this reflects the evidence about these young
people’s attainment. Although at Key Stage 2 young people in care in Wirral do better
than national comparator figures, they do less well than the Wirral average and at Key
Stage 4 the attainment gap between looked after children and other pupils has
increased in recent years.
Wirral has a relatively small but increasing minority of families from other cultures. More
needs to be done to understand how issues of poverty might be impacting on these
families.
Domestic violence is of particular concern in respect of children and families, an issue
which has been highlighted in the consultation to date. There is a high incidence of
violence to young women aged 16-25 who are pregnant. A significant number of people
accessing the services offered by the Family Safety Unit as a result of domestic violence
have chronic drug or alcohol dependencies or mental health issues and they are also
likely to face economic hardship.

Page 10 of 21

Page 44

3.

TAKING ACTION IN WIRRAL

Developing our strategy and action plan
We know that, beyond what the child poverty statistics tell us about levels of income,
living in poverty is not just about struggling to make ends meet. Its impact differs from
one family to another. What we also know is that children in poverty are more likely to
do less well in school, to have poor employment prospects and poor health in later life.
And when they have children of their own, these outcomes are likely to continue.
The data shows us that child poverty in Wirral is linked to a wide range of deprivation
issues – amongst them worklessness, poor housing, poor health and low levels of
educational attainment and skills. There can also be other issues such as domestic
violence, abuse or neglect, child or parental illness or disability, socially unacceptable or
criminal behaviour, drug or alcohol use and family dysfunction. Referrals to the local
authority regarding children in need in Wirral are highest from those deprived areas that
are most affected by child poverty. Tackling poverty in Wirral therefore means
addressing a range of complex problems within families and communities.
We have taken a number of steps to develop a meaningful strategy and action plan to
address child and family poverty in Wirral which takes into account the range of issues
and services which are involved.
Firstly, we set out its extent and nature in our first Wirral Child and Family Poverty
Needs Assessment. This is in line with the statutory requirements set out in the Child
Poverty Act. The needs assessment sets out detailed information about the local
population and the range of issues which can influence deprivation and poverty. It
draws on the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment developed by NHS Wirral.
The statistics referred to throughout this report are based on the data in the needs
assessment, which will be updated on a regular basis.
At the outset of developing the strategy, it was recognised that the data was only part of
the story about child poverty in Wirral. Alongside this, we needed to understand what
activity is already making a difference locally and what is already being considered in
terms of future services by partners in Wirral.
Much has been done nationally and at the Liverpool City Region level to understand
different levels of poverty and the impact of poverty on family life and the achievement
and aspirations of children and young people. This understanding has informed the
debate in Wirral about the action we should take.
Wirral has a strong tradition of effective partnership working. For example, the
Children’s Trust arrangement in Wirral is already involved in actions to improve
outcomes for the most vulnerable children through improving universal provision and
delivering targeted programmes, many of which benefit those living in or at risk of
poverty. Wirral’s Economic Development and Skills Partnership focuses on maximising
employment and skills outcomes for local people and has also had clear results.
Page 11 of 21

Page 45

Wirral also recognises the important role that is played by the voluntary, community and
faith sector in contributing to better outcomes for children and families across Wirral. In
recognition of this, and the need to harness and build on existing strengths in a
challenging financial climate, the local authority established an independent advisory
forum to look at child poverty and to make recommendations about a local strategy.
This forum is called the Wirral Child and Family Poverty Working Group.
A consultation event took place at the Floral Pavilion, New Brighton in June 2011 to
engage the views of approximately 100 stakeholders from the community, voluntary and
faith sector as well as the public sector. Those views have supported the development
of this draft strategy.
A project is being commissioned specifically to recruit a cohort of families in Wirral who
have been supported through specific employability programmes. A series of interviews
will be undertaken with these families. The focus of this evaluation project will be to
gather information about barriers to employment and what works best in supporting
families.
Gathering information to support our child poverty strategy is also central to the
neighbourhood planning process currently being undertaken in Wirral. Local
communities are being asked to tell us what they want for their neighbourhoods, with
targeted questions linked to issues such as access to employment and training advice
and services for children and young people.
Our approach – increasing the impact of what we do
Our vision sets out what we believe should be the workstreams for tackling child poverty
in Wirral. These are:
1.

Ensuring that children and families can easily access the services they
need and that partners work together to provide more joined up approaches
to recognising and addressing poverty;

2.

Targeting our efforts to make work the best route out of poverty for Wirral
families;

3.

Providing effective support for Wirral families who need help to manage
debt or problems of financial exclusion;

4.

Maximising the impact of all we do to improve the life chances of Wirral’s
children and young people;

5.

Recognise and support the role that safe and high quality neighbourhoods
and thriving communities can have in transforming lives.

Through the discussions undertaken by Wirral’s Child and Family Poverty Working
Group and consultation on the issues, we already know that there is much good practice
in place supporting families in poverty or at risk of poverty. The consultation has also
Page 12 of 21

Page 46

told us that we could do better in terms of the way we work together as partners on
these agendas in Wirral to increase the impact of what we do on reducing child poverty.
A key principle for working in partnership has developed from the work undertaken in
Wirral to develop the strategy and action plan. This is the need to use the language of
aspiration and hope when we talk about our children, families and communities in Wirral.
The initial action plan at the end of this document sets what we will now do to take
forward the key issues and challenges we have identified through looking at the
evidence and talking to partners and local people. All of the actions we will take as part
of this strategy will be driven by the need to make an impact in and to add value to our
local strategies for investment, jobs and skills and our plans for Wirral’s children and
young people and local neighbourhoods.
The national target date for eradicating child poverty is 2020 – this strategy and action
plan is the starting point for ensuring that the Council, partners and the wider community
work together in every way possible to achieve this in Wirral.
The Council’s role
The Council has a duty to facilitate the delivery of Wirral’s strategy through supporting
partners to work together and helping innovation to thrive. In recognition of this
leadership role, the Council will:
!

Ensure that measures to tackle child poverty are central to its budget, corporate
planning and commissioning activities, both the services that we commission and
where we join up our budgets with others;

!

Support the development of local approaches to working with our most vulnerable
families over and above the services we already commission for children and
families, led by the voluntary, community and faith sector;

!

Pursue opportunities such as the use of Community Budgets to drive more effective
allocation of our resources in line with the needs of families and local communities;

!

Put in place clear monitoring and reporting processes to evaluate the impact of our
action plan.

Page 13 of 21

Page 47

4.

WORKSTREAMS

Workstream 1: Ensuring that children and families can easily access the services
they need and that partners work together to provide more joined up approaches
to recognising and addressing poverty
Partnership working in Wirral to improve outcomes for children and young people is
recognised as being of an extremely high standard.
A clear finding of the consultation in relation to issues of child and family poverty is that
partners in Wirral can do more to join up the provision of advice and support and ensure
that those working at the front line of services, whether this is in Council or partner
facilities or in community and voluntary organisations, have the knowledge they need to
effectively support and signpost families to the services they need.
Workstream 2: Targeting our efforts to make work the best route out of poverty for
Wirral families
The evidence in Wirral, including what we have learnt through consulting with partners,
families and children and local communities, tells us that we can do more to break down
barriers to employment and training to make work the best route out of poverty and that
for different target groups and individuals these barriers may be very different.
There can be specific barriers to employment for particular target groups, including lone
parents, people with mental health issues and/or disabilities, young offenders, people
who do not engage, homeless / rough sleepers, people with alcohol / drug dependency,
ethnic minority communities, deprived communities, young people not in education,
employment or training (NEET) and young people who have been looked after children.
Data demonstrates that employment rates for these groups are lower than the average.
Evidence suggests a particular barrier to employment for adults and young people in
target groups is not being ‘workplace ready’ when they enter employment or work-based
training opportunities – this can include, for example, lack of basic numeracy or literacy
skills.
A key barrier – actual or perceived – is childcare. Partners need to explore further
issues of access and affordability to ensure that flexible and safe provision is developed
to meet the needs of families as well as taking practical action to promote the value of
childcare as a realistic option for working parents.
For some parents, the high costs of transport plus the availability and reliability of public
transport can become prohibitive particularly for those in low-paid jobs. Low travel
horizons, i.e. a reluctance to travel to employment and training opportunities, can also
be particularly common in some deprived communities.
There is a also a perception that there is a shortage of work that is particularly suitable
to some parents, for example, part-time jobs fitting around nursery or school hours;
term-time employment; and jobs providing more than very limited financial gains.
Page 14 of 21

Page 48

Many parents who do work are trapped in a cycle of low skills, low-paid employment
with limited career prospects and increased chances of moving between benefits and
work. Supporting parents to progress in work is identified as a key area for lobbying and
action in the Liverpool City Region Strategy.
Workstream 3: Providing effective support for Wirral families who need help to
manage debt or problems of financial exclusion
We know that many people on Wirral, especially those on low incomes and in the most
deprived areas, do not have access to some financial products and that lack of a bank
account or affordable credit puts people in some areas at greater risk of having to turn to
‘loan sharks’ and other unregulated lending provision.
We also know that families in Wirral are experiencing ‘over-indebtedness’ or problem
debt that is not manageable in relation to their income and that these individuals tend to
be concentrated at the lower end of the income scale.
The Government’s definition of fuel poverty is when a household needs to spend more
than 10% of its disposable income to adequately heat their home. 17.1% of Wirral
households are currently estimated to be in fuel poverty, which although is below the
average for both the Liverpool City Region (18.3%) and the North West (18.1%) it is
higher than the national average for England (15.6%). The majority of households living
in fuel poverty tend to be living in areas where income is low and property standards are
poor. Due to the economic climate and rising energy costs, fuel poverty is again
reportedly increasing.
Workstream 4: Maximising the impact of all we do to improve the life chances of
Wirral’s children and young people
Access to high quality early years provision including schools, maintained, private,
voluntary and independent settings and provision of services through Sure Start
Children’s Centres can provide children with a strong foundation for future development.
Support for families in parenting and other programmes can also impact on life chances
for individual children.
We also know that involvement of some parents in supporting their children is
sometimes inconsistent. Some have low aspirations. Such parents often fail to engage
with services which will enable the development of their child. As a consequence, there
is an outcome of children facing a poverty of experience.
Language rich environments are crucial for a child’s ability to communicate effectively
and develop their social and emotional capabilities to their full potential. Research has
demonstrated that approximately 50% of children in socially disadvantaged areas have
significant language delay on entry to school. These children are more likely to have
poor employment prospects and develop mental health issues later in life.
The most damaging factors to a young child's emotional and social development
include: poor maternal mental health; harsh and inconsistent parenting, the lack of good
quality play and learning experiences and parents with learning difficulties. In some
Page 15 of 21

Page 49

communities and families, the issue of poor parenting is multi-generational. The
consultation undertaken in Wirral also suggests however that the impact of older family
members playing a significant role in parenting can be extremely positive.
Successful progress has been made in the Early Years Foundation Stage with
continuous improvement, including in the lowest achieving children. Children eligible for
free school meals and those living in the 3% most deprived areas of Wirral have
improved their attainment at a higher rate than the rest of the Wirral. However, areas
with the highest levels of deprivation continue to have lower attainment than areas with
the lowest levels of deprivation.
The gap in attainment between children eligible for a free school meal and those who
are not increases as children progress through their education in Wirral. Overall, the
attainment of Wirral pupils is often above the national averages but there is a significant
difference or ‘gap’ between attainment in the most affluent areas and the most deprived.
The latest data demonstrates that, whilst the gap between Free School Meal and nonFree School Meal pupils in the attainment of 5+ A*-C GCSE is narrowing each year, it is
still higher than the national gap or that found in similar areas to Wirral.
The latest data available about young people in Wirral from low income backgrounds
who have progressed to higher education in comparison to their peers shows that the
gap continues, one which is greater than can be found nationally. By age 19, the gap in
the attainment of a Level 3 qualification is 31.8%, greater than the national gap and the
largest gap of all the Liverpool City Region authorities.
Health inequalities manifest themselves from the start of life and are linked to other
factors of poverty and deprivation. Mothers in deprived areas of Wirral are more likely to
smoke in pregnancy and have low birth weight babies. They are also less likely to
breastfeed their babies and more likely to suffer from post-natal depression. Children
with lower birth weight have been shown to have poorer health and poorer cognitive
development at ages 3 and 5. There is a strong correlation between a mother’s level of
education and her children’s health. There are differences in obesity levels between
children aged 2 to 15 in rich and poor families.
There is an increasing recognition of the benefits of early intervention programmes, the
intention of which is to support a focus on preventative services in the early years and
beyond. A particularly important issue is the identification of families who fail to access
existing services. The national focus has been set by the development of the Early
Intervention Grant, a specific funding stream, which will run from 2011 until 2015. The
intention is to enable local authorities and their partners to pool funding in order to target
disadvantage and achieve better results.
This funding in Wirral will support projects aimed around:
!
!
!

Supporting families in difficult circumstances
Supporting children and young people with disabilities
Promoting positive behaviour in children, young people and families

Page 16 of 21

Page 50

These focus of this commissioning is to benefit both the young people and the local
community by working proactively to identify problems early and stop them developing.
Workstream 5: Recognise and support the role that safe and high quality
neighbourhoods and thriving communities can have in transforming lives
There is recognition that there is low community cohesion in some areas and there is a
need to increase ‘ownership’ of issues by those communities. Although there are many
examples of successful community projects in Wirral, many grown from within
communities, there remain some communities which lack self-confidence and aspiration.
True community engagement and solutions generated by local people is a critical factor
in a strategy that needs to address a range of issues and challenges in local areas.
Increasing capacity, community spirit, self help, sustainability, emotional resilience and
cohesion are some of the underlying keys to reducing poverty and unlocking
generational poverty traps.
Access to local services can be a factor in compounding other factors linked to poverty
such as financial exclusion and health inequalities. Deprived areas often lack local
financial services such as banks and cash points. Where access to supermarkets is
restricted, disadvantaged families have little option but to buy their food from more
expensive local shops.
There are many examples across the borough of community facilities being used to
deliver services locally with the aim of increasing engagement. Key to thriving
communities is the provision of positive activities for young people. Equally, however,
there are communities where availability of community spaces are limited, leading to
residents having to travel. As a result, families living in poverty can be further excluded.
High housing costs relative to income can impact significantly on poverty and make it
difficult for families to move out of deprivation. The ability of families to access housing
is hampered by high property prices and rents; 25.6% of all households in Wirral are, in
theory, unable to afford open market accommodation of an appropriate size. This
applies to 65.4% of all lone parent households and 36.7% of households where the
head of household is not in employment.
A clear picture of the need for affordable housing is the 897 (6.34%) applicants who are
registered as of December 2010 who have an urgent need for re-housing resulting from
their current accommodation being unsuitable.
Poor housing standards lead to high energy bills due to inadequate heating and
insulation, and can also adversely affect education, social development, and life
chances. There is also an overlap with health inequalities in particular where homes are
cold and damp. This can exacerbate or be one of the causes of respiratory and cardiovascular diseases such as childhood asthma, impacting significantly on children’s
educational achievements and school attendance.
Homelessness is more likely in low income families and is often a result of unaffordable
housing costs. Although overall homelessness rates have fallen, the three main reasons
Page 17 of 21

Page 51

for homelessness in Wirral in 2009/10 were the termination of assured short hold
tenancy (22%), mortgage arrears (18%) and parents no longer willing or able to
accommodate older children (12%). Of the cases where homelessness could not be
prevented in the time available and who were accepted as unintentionally homeless, the
majority (65%) were considered to be priority need because the household included
dependent children.
Whilst overall crime rates within Wirral compare well with other areas of the country, this
masks some high rates of crime that are experienced within Wirral’s most deprived
areas. The distribution of the levels and patterns of crime and disorder across the
Borough closely parallels the distribution of multiple deprivation, especially for young
people, and there is a correlation between childhood poverty and a number of crime
issues. Crime within the most deprived wards remains at higher levels (Bidston,
Claughton, Birkenhead, Rock Ferry and Tranmere, Woodchurch, Leasowe, Moreton,
and Saughall Massie).
Anti-Social Behaviour (ASB) has reduced over the last four years, but some 42% of all
ASB incidents are related to young people and analysis shows that of these 20% of the
young people concerned were under the influence of alcohol. Between Jan – March
2010 just three Area Forums (Birkenhead /Tranmere /Rock Ferry, Bidston /Claughton
and Liscard /Seacombe) counted for 47.1% of all ASB incidents in Wirral. The Stronger
Communities Initiative identifies hotspots where agencies need a co-ordinated focused
approach to tackling crime and deprivation. In April 2010, the Morpeth Dock area was
identified as a ‘vulnerable locality’ and a multi agency working group established. This
area has the highest rates for both young offenders and young victims within Wirral.

Page 18 of 21

Page 52

Page 53

Page 19 of 21

Target efforts to make work the
best route out of poverty for Wirral
parents

Ensure partners and communities
are engaged in the vision for
eliminating child poverty in Wirral

Integrate activity to reduce child
and family poverty across Wirral

Remove barriers to employment
for parents and target groups

!

Ensure that services for families
and disadvantaged groups are
able to respond effectively when
child poverty is identified as an
issue

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

Ensure that the draft strategy for Wirral is developed in
partnership through targeted delivery planning sessions
and discussions at partnership meetings
Ensure that issues relating to child poverty highlighted by
local people through the recent Neighbourhood Plan
consultation are reflected in final Plans
Develop the ‘Roots and Wings’ website as a place for
sharing information in Wirral
Provide regular email updates to practitioners and
providers engaged in developing the strategy and action
plan to encourage information sharing and innovation
Work closely across the public and voluntary, community
and faith sectors to develop joined up approaches to
engaging families through our network of facilities and
community spaces
Roll out the free Children’s Workforce Development
Council child poverty training module to staff and
volunteers working with children and families
Undertake further work to evaluate services for families
and target groups, for example people with learning
disabilities or mental health issues, to develop specific
actions for raising awareness and improving signposting
Use the findings of the ‘what works’ evaluation project to
drive partner approaches to ensuring that parenting and
employment programmes are meeting the needs of
families in relation to aspirations and readiness for work

What can we do?

Engage more families through
more accessible services and
outreach

Improve information sharing
about best practice and
successful interventions

Areas for action in Wirral

Workstream

ROOTS AND WINGS: INITIAL ACTION PLAN

Page 54

Page 20 of 21

Maximise the impact of all we do to

Provide effective support for Wirral
families who need help to manage
debt or problems of financial
exclusion

Support effective parenting

Improve financial literacy

Improve access to suitable
financial services

Support parents to progress in
work

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

Develop further links between JobCentrePlus and
Children’s Centres
Work with contractors for the Department of Work and
Pensions Work Programme and European Social Fund
Families with Multiple Disadvantage to ensure issues for
Wirral families are being understood and addressed
Undertake a specific planning session with partners to
explore access to and flexibility of childcare
Consider what further partners can do to support target
groups into employment including through the
Apprenticeship Programme and working with employers
Work with partners to address specific travel issues
impacting on access to opportunities for children and
families in poverty, for example those emerging from the
Council’s consultation on Neighbourhood Plans
Undertake a specific planning session to explore Wirral’s
approach, including in respect of actions outlined in the
Liverpool City Region, which include working with local
employers to promote and implement a living wage
across the City Region
Identify opportunities for making information more widely
available through local networks and community assets
Explore how fuel poverty interventions can link to wider
issues of financial exclusion for Wirral families
Work with City Region colleagues to develop a City
Region Financial Inclusion Forum and review local
arrangements for sharing best practice and expertise
Identify opportunities for making debt management
training more widely available, for example through
community organisations working in the areas most
affected by financial exclusion
Work with schools to ensure financial issues are covered
within the curriculum
Investigate opportunities to promote life skills and

Page 55

Page 21 of 21

Recognise and support the role
that safe and high quality
neighbourhoods and thriving
communities can have in
transforming lives

improve the life chances of
Wirral’s children and young people

!

Promote prevention and early
intervention approaches to
reduce health inequalities

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

Close the education and
attainment gap

Promote social and emotional
development

!

positive parenting, including through increasing take up
of parenting classes
Explore how the role of volunteers can be expanded,
building on existing activity – for example, where
children’s centres are already working closely with
grandparents, carers and wider family members
Build on existing initiatives to promote the importance of
early language and communication skills with parents
and carers
Pilot a school readiness index to provide evidence about
the effectiveness of Foundation Years services
Work with schools to share best practice, for example
about the use of pupil premium payments in improving
the attainment of disadvantaged pupils
Ensure that priorities being led through the ChaMPs
public health network are included in partner plans and
activities as appropriate
Ensure Neighbourhood Plans developed in consultation
with local people reflect real community need and build
on community assets
Explore targeting of specific communities
Explore opportunities for creative employment
developments and social enterprises (e.g. community
shops, community-led childcare) which meet community
need, tackle issues of engaging families and which can
help plug gaps in the availability of suitable work
opportunities, including for particular target groups
Develop the role of community champions, mentors and
peer-support, particularly in more deprived communities
and look at more structured ways of identifying children
most in need of role models
Ensure that housing services are linked to pathways of
support for families in poverty or at risk of poverty

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 56

WIRRAL CHILDREN’S TRUST BOARD – 24th January 2012

Agenda Item 8

Report to the Children’s Trust Board on Safeguarding Arrangements

1. Introduction and background
This report forms part of a regular update from the LSCB to the Children’s Trust Board on
key developments locally and nationally on regulatory reform, updates on progress of local
Serious Case Reviews and key challenges for the partnership and agencies.
2. National reform and statutory guidance
Ø The Munro Review of Child Protection- Implications of the Review and the
Government’s response were key themes of the recent LSCB Development Day.
The LSCB is drafting a statement for partners regarding the approach it will take; this
will include retaining our core policies and procedures, keeping some timescales and
prioritising the early help offer. Some of the main challenges presented to the LSCB
are as follows:
- Reviewing local policies and procedures
- Developing safeguarding supervision across the partnership
- Agreeing performance management information and implementing systems for
collection
The government has made it clear in their response that they expect each local
area to make decisions and implement structures best suited to their own needs.
Therefore the LSCB plans to host a stakeholder event in order to consult with
partners on meeting our local needs and common goals.
Ø Child Death Overview Panel Update- The CDOP Panel, which has responsibility for
reviewing child deaths in Wirral, will enter into a pan-Merseyside group as of
February 2012. Initially Wirral CDOP will submit only neo-natal deaths and once
reporting streams have been established all child deaths will be reviewed by the panMerseyside group. The purpose of the pan-Merseyside group is to allow better data
analysis through a wider footprint area. The LSCB agreed to join the group as it
believes this will enhance learning from cases and enable better awareness raising
in terms of preventative work. For the first 12 months Wirral CDOP will continue to
function as in previous years alongside the pan-Merseyside group. This will mean
that cases are reviewed thoroughly whilst the new group is established.
Ø Workstreams- work continues in the following areas:
-

Section 11 Safeguarding Audit
Annual Report and Business Plan
ZK Critical Incident
Child F Learning Together Review
Themed audits- safeguarding supervision/ pre-birth assessments

3. Recommendations:
3.1 The Children’s Trust Board notes the points raised in this report
Report Author:
Caroline McKenna
Head of Safeguarding Children and Adults

Contact:
Phone: 6665576
Email: carolinemckenna@wirral/gov.uk

Page 57

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 58

Agenda Item 9

Presentation to

Wirral!Children's!Trust!Board
Vivian Stafford
Strategic Service Manager
24 January 2012

Children and Young
People’s Department

UPDATE: Procurement of
Careers Education and
Information, Advice and
Guidance for Young People
for 2012/13
Children and Young
People’s Department

Page 59

Statutory Guidance
! Changing policy landscape – responsibility for the
delivery of CEIAG in schools has changed with the
passage of the Education Act, 2011.
! Schools have become responsible for provision of
CEIAG for their young people from Sept 2012.
! SoS expects schools to deliver CEIAG through
‘career directed learning’ or ‘cross curricular
careers learning’.
! Expected to include young people from year 9 to
11.(Consulting post-16)
! Schools expected to work with LA and providers of
IAG to support YP without the need for legislation.
Children and Young
People’s Department

Local Authorities
! DfE issued guidance, “…local authorities will retain
their statutory duty to encourage , enable or assist
young people’s participation in education or training”.
! Early Intervention Grant to be used to support the
engagement of vulnerable young people (YP) and
those at risk of disengagement.
! Expected to have regard to the following guidance
when organising services:
! Tracking and supporting young people.
! Work with JobCentre Plus to ensure NEET YP receive a
complimentary package of support.
Cont…
Children and Young
People’s Department

Page 60

Local Authorities cont….
! No expectation that LA’s will provide a
Universal service from September 2012.
! LA’s IAG support to target vulnerable young
people aged 16 to 18 only.
! There is an expectation that LA’s will work with
schools to ensure vulnerable young people
receive the support that they need.
! LA’s will expect to receive data from schools
relating to their young people.
Children and Young
People’s Department

National Careers Service
! National Careers Service established from April
2012.
! The service will include online and telephone
support plus some face-to-face guidance support
for people aged 19+
! Builds on Next Step adult IAG service and the
national Connexions Direct service.
! Recently revised Matrix Award will be the
recognised standard.

Children and Young
People’s Department

Page 61

Liverpool City Region
Response
!

Connexions Commissioning Group has identified 3
delivery strands required to meet the revised LA
guidance.
A. IAG services for young people vulnerable to

becoming NEET.
B. Young people data and tracking services.
C. IAG web based interface

!

Timeline
Children and Young
People’s Department

Council commissioned
targeted IAG service
!
!
!
!

!

For young people (aged 16-18) NEET / at risk of
becoming NEET or those from a vulnerable group.
Service to include 1:1 guidance, support and
intervention from an IAG professional.
Team of agile working ‘peripatetic’ personal advisors.
Delivery locations and engagement strategy to
include One Stop Shops, library service, youth hubs
and facility to hot desk with Council Area Teams.
Other services commissioned – 139A assessments,
data tracking and reporting.
Children and Young
People’s Department

Page 62

Challenges
!
!
!
!

!

Providing a service for young people from 1st April
through to the 31st August 2012.
Delivering the 2012 September Guarantee.
The interface with the school or academies offer pre16 from September 2012.
Ensuring smooth data transfer of learner information
– informing the NEET count and September
Guarantee.
Ensuring synergy with the National Careers Service.

Children and Young
People’s Department

Questions?

Vivian Stafford
Strategic Service Manager
Tel: 0151 346 6630
Email: vivianstafford@wirral.gov.uk
Children and Young
People’s Department

Page 63

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 64

